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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

FOREWORD

These accounts for the year ended 31 March 2011 have been prepared in accordance with
Article 90(2) (a) of the Health and Personal Social Services (Northem Ireland) Order 1972, as

amended by Article 6 of the Audit and Accountability (Northern Ireland) Order 2003, in a form
directed by the Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety.



NORTHERN HSC TRUST

ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

STATEMENT OF NORTHERN TRUST'S RESPONSIBILITIES AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S RESPONSIBILITIES.

Under the Health and Personal Social Services (Northern Ireland) Order 1972 (as amended by
Article 6 of the Audit and Accountability (Northem Ireland) Order 2003), the Northern HSC
Trust is required to prepare financial statements for each financial year in the form and on the
basis determined by the Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety. The
financial statements are prepared on an accruals basis and must provide a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Northern HSC Trust, of its income and expenditure and cash flows for
the financial year.

In preparing the financial statements the Trust is required to:

- observe the accounts direction issued by the Department of Health, Social
Services and Public Safety including relevant accounting and disclosure
requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis.

- make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis.

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, and
disclose and explain any material departures in the financial statements.

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Trust will continue in operation.

- keep proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Trust.

- pursue and demonstrate value for money in the services the Trust provides and
in its use of public assets and the resources it controls.

The Permanent Secretary of the Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety as
Accounting Officer for health and personal social services resources in Northern Ireland has
designated Sean Donaghy of Northern HSC Trust as the Accounting Officer for the Trust.
His relevant responsibilities as Accounting Officer, including his responsibility for the
propriety and regularity of the public finances for which he is answerable and for the keeping
of proper records, are set out in the Accountable Officer Memorandum, issued by the
Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety. The Accounting Officer is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.



NORTHERN HSC TRUST
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

CERTIFICATES OF DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE

I certify that the annual accounts set out in the financial statements and notes to the accounts
(pages 18-77) which I am required to prepare on behalf of the Northern Health and Social
Care Trust have been compiled from and are in accordance with the accounts and financial
records maintained by the Trust and with the accounting standards and policies for HSC
Trusts approved by the DHSSPS.

I certify that the annual accounts set out in the financial statements and notes to the accounts
(pages 18-77) as prepared in accordance with the above requirements have been submitted to
and duly approved by the Board.




NORTHERN HSC TRUST

ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

Scope of responsibility

The Board of the Northern HSC Trust is accountable for internal control. As Accounting
Officer and Chief Executive of the Board, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system
of internal control that supports the achievement of the organisation's policies, aims and
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am personally
responsible in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me by the Department of
Health, Social Services and Public Safety.

Partnerships with other HSC Bodies

In addition to DHSSPS, the Trust has a close and positive working relationship with colleague
agencies in the HSC, particularly our commissioners / Board and the various directorates of the
Business Services Organisation (BSO). The Trust has regular accountability meetings with the
Board and DHSSPS and is informed by the Commissioning Plan and Priorities for Action. The
Trust prepares a Trust Delivery Plan to reflect its activities for each year. The Trust also
participates in a wide range of groups designed to enhance the services provided fo its
population. The Trust works closely with the community and voluntary sector.

Purpose of the system on internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control
is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement
of organisational polices, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact shouid they be realised and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
cconomically. The system of internal control has been in place in Northern HSC Trust for the
year ended 31 March 2011 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts and
accords with Department of Finance and Personnel guidance.

The Board, in fulfilling its consideration of the key strategic and managerial issues facing the
Trust, maintains and reviews the effectiveness of the system of interna! control. The Board
exercises strategic control over the operation of the organisation through a system of Corporate
Governance which includes:

» A schedule of matters reserved for Board decisions;

= A scheme of delegation, which delegates decision making authority within set parameters to
the Chief Executive and other officers;

» Standing Orders and Standing Financial Instructions;



* A Remuneration Committee to oversee Senior Executive’s Pay; The Remuneration
Committee is a sub-committee of the Trust Board established to advise the Board on
appropriate remuneration and terms and conditions of service for the Chief Executive and
other directors. The committee comprises the Board Chairman and three nominated Non-
Executive Directors, with the Chief Executive and Director of Human Resources in
attendance; other Executive Directors may be invited to attend in an advisory capacity.

» A Governance Management Board (GMB);

* Four Sub-Committees of the Trust Board with responsibility for Audit, Risk Management,
User Feedback and Involvement, and Charitable Trust Funds.

o The Audit Commitiee is composed of three Non-Executive Directors with
Executive Directors, including the Director of Finance, the External Auditor and
the Internal Auditor in attendance as required. The committee reviews the
establishment and maintenance of an effective system of internal control, across
the whole of the Trust’s activities (both clinical and non clinical) that supports
the achievements of the Trust’s activities.

o The Governance Committee comprises three Non-Executive Directors and a
public representative. In addition the Chief Executive, Executive Directors,
other Trust staff and the Internal Auditor attend as required. The committee
provides assurance to the Trust Board that the structures, systems and processes
in place will deliver the Trust’s key clinical objectives and ensure continuous
improvements in the quality and safety of patient care to promote improvement
and excellence.

o The User Feedback and Involvement Committee comprises three Non-
Executive Directors and a representative from the Patient Client Council.
Directors and Trust governance managers attend as required.

o The Charitable Trust Funds Committee comprises two Non-Executive Directors
with senior staff including the Director of Finance in attendance. Further,
representatives of the Audit Committee and the Governance Committee meet
annually with a view to ensuring an integrated approach to governance within
the Trust. Each Committee reports back to the Trust Board on a regular basis.

The Trust has an effective recruitment and selection policy which serves to ensure the
appointment of suvitable staff, and meets statutory and legal requirements in the area of
employment.

The system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular financial
information, administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of
delegation and accountability. In particular it includes:-

o comprehensive budgeting systems which are monitored by the Trust Board on an
ongoing basis;



e regular reviews by the Trust Board of monthly financial reports which indicate
financial performance against the forecast;

setting targets to measure financial and other performances;

clearly defined capital investment control guidelines;

formal budget management disciplines as appropriate;

the Trust having an internal audit function which operates to government international
accounting standards and whose work is informed by an analysis of risk to which the
Trust is exposed, with annual audit plans based on this analysis.

The BSO Internal Audit function provides an independent and objective opinion to the
Accounting Officer, Board and Audit Committee on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
system of internal control. In 2010/ 11 Internal Audit reviewed the following areas:

Audit Level of Assurance

e Review of Audit Recommendations 09/10 Satisfactory
o Payroll Limited

e Incidents and Complaints Management Limited

s Non Pay Expenditure Satisfactory
e Patients Private Property - Acute Satisfactory
e Risk Management Satisfactory
¢ Bank and Cash Satisfactory
e Budgetary Control Satisfactory
o Charitable Funds - Investments Satisfactory

s Cash Management and Management of Clients Monies in Social

Services Facilities Satisfactory / Limited
e Agenda for Change Calculations Satisfactory
e Trauma Advisory Panel Expenditure Satisfactory
e Domiciliary Care — External Providers Satisfactory
» Private Practice Income Limited
» Management of Locums Limited
s Performance Management Satisfactory
s Directorate Finance Audit — Acute Services Satisfactory
¢ Directorate Risk Audit — Mental Health Satisfactory
» Financial Assessments {including Direct Payments) Satisfactory
e Procurement and Management of Maintenance Contracts Satisfactory / Limited



* Management of Contracts with Independent and Voluntary Sector ~ Satisfactory / Limited

¢ Management of Client Monies in Independent Homes Satisfactory

¢ Efficiency Savings Satisfactory

¢ Information Governance Limited

* Human Resources Satisfactory

. ICT | Satisfactory / Limited
» Verification of Controls Assurance Standards Not Applicable

In all cases an independent audit opinion was given by Internal Audit, based on the work
undertaken and resultant findings. Agreed recommendations will be monitored by Internal
Audit in due course to confirm appropriate implementation by the Trust. Internal Audit
categorises its assurance into substantial, satisfactory, limited and unacceptable and gives a
conclusion based on the results of its testing.

The overall opinion of the Head of Internal Audit for the year ended 31% March 2011 is that
there is a satisfactory system of internal control designed to meet the Trust’s objectives.
However there were a number of areas where Limited Assurance has been assigned. In each
case management have accepted the recommendations, have drawn up plans for their
implementation, have designated responsible officers to take forward the resulting actions and
will continue to monitor progress. The audits in question are as follows:

Payroll: Identified wealmesses were in the areas of absence of a formal authorisation
framework, employee documentation, verification of data, overpayments and control accounts.
A detailed action plan to address the identified weaknesses has been developed and monthly
monitoring meetings are held to review progress.

Incidents and Complaints Management; Identified weaknesses were in the areas of high
graded incidents not being investigated, delays in completion of investigations and appropriate
documentation not being completed and retumed to the complaints/service user experience
office. Actions to address identified weaknesses have been initiated by the Medical and
Governance Directorate.

Cash Management and Management of Clients Monies in Social Service Facilities —
Supported Living: Identified weaknesses were in the areas of arrangements relating to the
Trust acting as appointee for a client, reconciliation of bank statements, and safekeeping of a
small number of donations. The Mental Health and Disability Services Directorate have
engaged with the Finance Directorate to produce effective internal control procedures and to
secure training for staff,

Private Practice Income: Identified weaknesses were in the areas of lack of reconciliation of
Private Practice activity information, inconsistent approach to recording of Private Outpatient
activity and arrangements for notification and invoicing of Category Il work. A Trust wide



group has been reconvened to take forward the issues identified and to promote best practice.
This group reports to the Director of Medical and Governance.

Management of Locums: Identified weaknesses were in the areas of lack of evidence of
Access NI checks, delay in confirmation of GMC registration, checks of the alert register,
confirmation of entitlements to work in the country and completion of Right Patient Right
Blood competencies. The Medical and Governance Directorate has initiated a review of the
current procedures to implement the recommendations, and to further enhance existing
controls. The Comptroller and Auditor General has made reference to this report in his Audit
Report on the Annual Accounts.

Management of Maintenance Contracts ~ Radiology and Laboratory: It was noted that
these contracts were not routinely monitored and charges were not being checked against the
respective contracts. The accepted recommendations will be implemented within the two
departments, sharing implementation and best practice information.

Management of Contracts with the Independent and Voluntary Sector — Procurement of
Social Care Contracts: There was an identified weakness relating to a number of contracts in
place with the independent and voluntary sector which had been inherited from legacy Trusts
and the failure to subject these to a market testing or selection approach. Management have
accepted the findings of the audit report and work has commenced both internally and with
other agencies e.g. the Housing Executive, to implement the recommendations made. The
Comptroller and Auditor General has made reference to this report in his Audit Report on the
Annual Accounts.

Information Governance: Weaknesses were identified relating to access to two archival
stores, the need for an Information Governance training needs analysis, and follow up work on
a full data flow exercise. Management have accepted the recommendations and initiated an
action plan to address these.

ICT: There were identified weaknesses relating to the control surrounding use of unsecured
USB devices. Management have accepted the recommendations and initiated an action plan to
address these.

The accepted recommendations and subsequent action plans, arising from significant internal
control issues, identified during audits carried out in 2009/10, have been subject to ongoing
implementation by the relevant department, and scrutiny by internal audit.

With regard to the wider corporate governance environment, the Trust has in place a range of
organisational controls designed to promote the efficient and effective discharge of its business
in accordance with the law and departmental direction. Every effort is made to ensure that the
objectives of the Trust are pursued in accordance with recognised and accepted standards of
public administration.

The Trust has in place an Anti Fraud Policy, and a Fraud Response Plan which gives details of
responsibilities and actioning officers in the event of a suspected or detected fraud. Extensive
work has been undertaken in promoting fraud awareness throughout the Trust, including
provision of a training programme, participation in a pilot e-learning project instigated by



Counter Fraud and Probity Services (BSO) which in due course will be formally launched in
the Trust, and communication with staff regarding the recent phase of the National Fraud
Initiative, with investigation of data matches now underway. The Trust has also agreed a
protocol with CF&PS to be applied in investigation of cases in which the Trust seeks their
assistance.

Capacity to handle risk

In 2010/11 the Trust revised its Integrated Governance Strategy to take account of new
statutory duties, and the Management Statement and Financial Memorandum in addition to
other changes in the Trust. The Trust’s risk matrix and associated guidance is likely to be
replaced following regional consensus on the matrix to be used. The Trust’s risk management
structures and systems continue to encomipass all risks including e.g. those relating to financial,
corporate, information and clinical and social care governance spanning all aspects of the
Trust’s activities.

The Governance Committee over the past year has met its obligations in terms of ensuring that
risks are effectively managed and communicated to Trust Board. Continuing progress has
been made to strengthen the structures and processes to embed risk management within the
Trust. Risk Registers are maintained at Directorate level and feed into the Trust Risk Register,
which, in tum, informs the Trust Register of Top Risks as identified by Govemance
Management Board (GMB) on an ongoing basis as representing the most significant risks to
achievement of the Trust’s objectives. These registers are subject to continuing review at
GMB and at Govermance Committee to assist in providing assurance regarding the
effectiveness of control measures to mitigate and move towards the reduction or removal of the
risks to which they refer. Each operational directorate has appointed a senior manager with
specific responsibility for governance matters. The Trust acknowledges the need for Controls
Assurance and Risk Management to be ‘mainstreamed’ into the day-to-day activities of the
Trust and staff at all levels are encouraged and facilitated to participate fully in the
identification, assessment and management of risk.

The risk and control framework

Over the past year the Governance Accountability Framework has helped to further progress
the culture, systems and processes that will embed governance as a key component of all
organisational activity. Determining safe practice is an important component of successful risk
management and will promote a fair and open culture and safe practice throughout the
organisation. Managing risk is an essential component of all organisational activity. The
Governance Committee has recognised the need to adopt such an approach and has put in place
a systematic and unified process to ensure the management of risks across all areas of the
Trust’s activity. This has led to the implementation of functioning Trust Wide Risk Registers
at Department, Directorate and Corporate Levels. The Australian/New Zealand Model
(AS/NZS 4360:2004) as adopted by the DHSSPS has been incorporated into the Trust’s Risk
Management Sirategy and Policy which was developed and approved during 2008/09 and
rolled out across the organisation. A comprehensive Trust Incident Management Policy and
Procedure (including procedure for Serious Adverse Incidents) was also developed and



approved during 2008/09, and operated throughout 2010/11; both of these policies will be
revised in 2011/2012. Incident reporting analysis facilitates the provision of trend reports to
GMB and other groups operating within the Trust’s Governance Accountability Framework for
their further consideration and action in developing suitable strategies to manage risks
identified by this means. The Trust works closely with the HSCB and PHA in relation to
investigating, reporting and learning from SAY’s. The Trust finds the 12 week timeframe for
the investigation and reporting of SAI’s very challenging and often seeks permission to extend,
in order to complete the investigation to a satisfactory standard. The Trust monitors this
situvation closely. The Trust introduced a ‘sharing learning’ process in 2010/2011 that
facilitates audit of the learning from such events as it is cascaded through directorates. Limited
assurance had been provided in respect of learning from complaints and incidents and this
development will help address the deficits identified. The controls assurance standard for
emergency planning did not meet substantive compliance when verified by internal audit.
Action is now underway to address those elements of the standard which largely caused this
non-compliance. The Trust-wide Emergency & Business Continuity Planning Forum met for
the first time on 18" April 2011. This group has responsibility for directing and co-ordinating
activity in this area including updating the Trust Business Continuity Plan.

Good progress is maintained in operating the Governance Assurance Framework. This is a
developing area and the Trust will apply the issued DHSSPS guidance relating to it. These
processes complement Directorate Performance Review Meetings which continue to ensure
that each Directorate Team is accountable for reporting on performance against targets, with
Governance and Risk Management issues being discussed at those meetings.

The Trust continues to be in compliance with Departmental guidance (HSS (F) 67/2006) in
respect of payments for legal and litigation services.

The Safety First Framework published by the DHSSPS has now been superseded by the Patient
Safety Quality Improvement Planning Process, which is supported by the Regional Safety
Forum. The Trust is fully engaged in this work and regularly collaborates with internal and
external partners to maximise learning and benefits from the safety work.

The Trust recognises that Personal & Public Involvement (PPI) in the management of risks is a
key priority. A PPI Steering Group was established to develop a PPI Strategy and a 3-year
action plan in line with the DHSSPS Circular. The Trust is determined to engage with and
actively involve users, carers and communities in the development and delivery of services.
The Trust’s PPI strategy has been approved by Governance Management Board and is being
implemented at present. It is available on the Trust web site.

Information Risk Management
Information Risk Management is an essential element of broader Information Governance and
is an integral part of good management practice. The Trust continues to embed information risk

management into existing business processes and functions.

Information risks are managed within the context of the Trust’s Risk Management Strategy.
Such risks are identified and documented at a number of levels including the Trust Register of
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Top Risks, the Directorate Risk Register and, where appropriate, in lower level Risk Registers.
Information Incident reporting (including Serious Adverse Incident reporting) is performed
using the normal Trust procedures and in addition, IT Security incidents are logged centrally
with the Information Technology Services, Business Services Organisation. Robust project
management is used to ensure that information governance matters (e.g. access control,
contingency) relating to new Information Systems are addressed as part of implementation.

The Trust has identified its Senior Information Risk Owner and a number of Information Asset
Owners, and these will increase in the coming year. Other roles, such as the Trust’s Personal
Data Guardian, Information Governance staff (includes the Data Protection Officer and the
Freedom of Information Practitioner), IT Security staff and Information System Managers, all
confribute to the management of information risk. In addition, the Trust has established an
Information Governance Forum which reports, via the Governance Management Board, to the
Trust Board. The Information Governance Forum manages a work programme that addresses a
number of risk areas.

IT Security training is mandated for all users and a range of wider Information Governance
courses is offered in-house. The Trust has drawn up and is providing a comprehensive
development programme for System Managers. This is a pivotal staff group that will have a
key role as Information Asset Administrators and in the formal implementation of information
risk management.

The Trust is reliant to a significant extent on the services provided by BSO ITS, for which
Service Level Agreements are in place. BSO ITS also provides formal assurance to DHSSPS
as part of the corporate governance process.

The Trust has in place a number of policies that support information risk. management
including:

e Policy (and associated procedures) on Processing of Personal Information

¢ Policy (and associated procedures) on Making Information Available to the Public

o HPSS ICT Security Policy

» Server, Desktop and Portable Computing / Teleworking Security Policy

e Records Management Policy

Compliance with both the Information & Communications Technology (ICT) and the Records
Management Controls Assurance Standards provides assurance that information risk
management is being addressed.

There were 4 incidents recorded on incident management system classified as 'lost/missing
records'”:
e envelope containing lab reports handed in to chemist
¢ Jost Trust mobile phone
e doctor’s car stolen and with it 8 sets of notes and a work diary containing some client
information
= 1 social work case file could not be found
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Compliance with Controls Assurance Standards

The Trust assessed its compliance with the 22 Controls Assurance Standards which were
defined by the Department and against which a degree of progress was expected in 2010/ 11.

The Trust achieved the following levels of compliance for 2010/ 11:

DHSS&PS Expected | Trust Level of | Verified by
Standard Level of Compliance | Compliance
Buildings, land, plant and | 70% - 95% Substantive Self-
non-medical equipment (Substantive) Assessment
Decontamination of | 70% - 99% Substantive Self-
medical devices (Substantive) Assessment
Emergency Planning 70% - 99% Moderate Internal
(Substantive) Audit
Environmental Cleanliness | 70% - 99% Substantive Seif-
(Substantive) Assessment
Environment Management | 70% - 99% Substantive Self-
(Substantive) Assessment
Financial Management | 70% - 99% Substantive Internal
(Core Standard) (Substantive) Audit
Fire safety 70% - 99% Substantive Self-
(Substantive) Assessment
Fleet and Transport | 70% - 99% Substantive Internal
Management (Substantive) Audit
Food Hygiene 70% - 99% Substantive Self-
(Substantive) Assessment
Govemance (Core | 70% - 99% Substantive Internal
Standard) (Substantive) Audit
Health & Safety 70% - 99% Substantive Self-
(Substantive) ‘ Assessment
Human Resources 70% - 99% Substantive Self-
{Substantive) Assessment
Infection Control 70% - 99% Substantive Self~
(Substantive) Assessment
Information 70% - 99% Substantive Self-
Communication (Substantive) Assessment
Technology
Management of Purchasing | 70% - 99% Substantive Self-
and Supply (Substantive) Assessment
Medical Devices and | 70% - 9%% Substantive Self-
Equipment Management (Substantive) Assessment
Medicines Management 70% - 99% Substantive Internal
(Substantive) Audit
Records Management 70% - 99% Substantive Self-
(Substantive) Assessment
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Research Governance 70% - 99% Substantive Self-
(Substantive) Assessment
Risk Management (Core | 70% - 99% Substantive Internal
Standard) (Substantive) Audit
Security Management 70% - 99% Substantive Self-
(Substantive) Assessment
Waste Management 70% - 99% Substantive Self-
(Substantive) Assessment

A detailed action plan, and particularly approval of a revised Trust Major Incident Plan with
associated plans for training, exercising etc, has been prepared to address the gaps identified
during the self-assessment of compliance with the Controls Assurance Standard for Emergency
Planning. This plan will be progressively implemented during 2011/12 to achieve substantive
compliance when next assessment completed,

Significant Internal Control Issues

The work to reduce the risk of Healthcare Associated Infection (HCAI) and in particular
clostridium difficile following the major outbreak in 2007/2008 continues. SMT monitor the
number of new cases of clostridium difficile infection and work closely with PHA. The
number of C Diff cases has not reduced in line with the Trust’s objective, and does not meet
the PFA target. An assurance framework for HCAI has been developed and the Delivery Plan
was renewed in 2010/2011. The Chief Executive has requested a revised accountability
structure for HCAI and this will be formally established in May 2011. The C Difficile Public
Inquiry reported in March 2011 with nine recommendations, addressed by the Trust, that
largely focused on communication issues, patient experience, end of life care and- outbreak
management. An improvement plan that addresses all recommendations for the Trust is being
implemented.

In 2010/2011 increased risk of not being able to deliver safe and effective emergency care at
Whiteabbey and Mid Ulster Hospitals resulted in those A&E services being replaced by Minor
Injuries Units. Additional capacity was created in the Emergency Department at Antrim
Hospital and A&E services are now provided from two hospitals in the Trust. Antrim
Emergency Department has experienced pressures and delays in having patients admitted; this
has beenincluded on the corporate risk register. A comprehensive action plan has been
implemented to address these issues and has resulted in improved performance. Funding for a
new A&E department at Antrim has been approved and interim plans are being developed to
further increase capacity.

The process for investigating and learning from Serious Adverse Incidents has been developed
and there is growing confidence in adopting the 'being open’ good practice principles. We have
also introduced independent partners from voluntary organisations onto investigation teams
when appropriate, These developments increase our capacity to handle risk and learn from
error.

Pandemic Flu contingency planning consumed a significant amount of time in 2009/10 due to
local, corporate and regional planning events. The planning phase and actual management of
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the cases provided significant learning for the Trust. In future, the Pandemic Flu Plan will be a
sub-section of the Emergency Plan.

The maternity services review programme has strengthened governance arrangements and
these are having a positive impact on services for women.

Financial Position

The NHSCT has in place a 2 year Modernisation and Recovery Plan. This Plan was prepared
as a response to a deficit identified as part of the Due Diligence process carried out by the
HSCB in 2010. The Plan is monitored on a monthly basis by a Programme Board. In order to
recognise the difficulty faced by the Trust, the HSCB assigned the Trust a target control total
of £6.406 million. The Trust achieved a surplus of £57,000 against the control total. The Trust
continues to work with the HSCB to achieve breakeven for 2011/12. Nevertheless there are
significant challenges facing the HSCB and Trust going forward.

Performance Management

In 2009/10, the Trust had agreed, and was funded recurrently, to provide additional activity for
a number of specialties. During 2010/11, due to a number of factors, including the
reconfiguration of Acute Services, and clinical vacancies, this activity was not delivered at the
level agreed with the HSCB. Consequently the HSCB withdrew £950,000 from the Trust
Revenue Resource Limit. The Trust has agreed with the HSCB on the levels of activity it will
provide in 2011/12 which will reflect the additional investment made and has assured the
HSCB that processes are in place to deliver this activity. This adjustment did not impact
negatively on the Trust’s financial performance.

A number of Internal Audit reports resulted in limited assurance and further detail on these is
included in the section above entitled “Purpose of the system of internal control”. The Trust
has considered all of the internal and external audit reports in preparing the statement on
internal control.

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for the review of effectiveness of the system of
internal control. My review is informed by the work of the internal auditors and the executive
managers within the Northern HSC Trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework, the Audit and Governance Committees, the
Annual Report of the Chief Internal Auditor and comments made by the external auditors in
their management letter and other reports.

I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control by the Board of the Northern HSC Trust. A plan to address
.weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement to the system is in place. Board members
are members and chairs of committees of the Trust and therefore report to the Board on
significant control issues arising. The Board also reviews, on an annual basis, the Terms of
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Reference of the Audit Committee and the role and membership of all Board committees.

The Board receives regular reports through the Board Assurance Framework, which covers
the risks faced by the organisation.

Signature of Accounting Officer and date of signature

le. dae Hui
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NORTHERN HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE TRUST

THE CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL TO THENORTHERN
IRELAND ASSEMBLY

I certify that Thave audited the financial statements of Northern Health and Social Care Trust for the
year ended 31 March 2011 under the Health and Personal Social Services (Northern Ireland) Order
1972, as amended. These comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, the Statement
of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity
and the related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set
out within them. I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in
that report as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of the Trust, Chief Executive and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trust and Chief Executive’s Responsibilities, the Trust
and Chief Executive are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in
accordance with the Fealth and Personal Social Services (Northern Freland) Order 1972, as amended.
I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those
standards require me and my staff to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards
for Auditors.

Scope of the Andit of the Financial Statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence abont the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material
niisstatement, whether caused by frand or emror. This includes an assessment of: whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Northemn Health and Social Care Trust’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed:; the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the Northern Health and Social Care Trust and the overall presentation of the
financial statements. In addition I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual
Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements. If I become aware of
any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies I consider the implications for my certificate.

In addition, I am required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
expenditure and income reported in the financial statements have been applied to the purposes
intended by the Assembly and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

Opinicn on Regularity

In my opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes
intended by the Assembly and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govem

them.
Opinion on financial statements
In my opinion;

« the financial statements give a tre and fair view, of the state of Northern Health and Social
Care Trust’s affairs as at 31 March 2011 and of its net expenditure, cash flows and changes m
taxpayers’ equity for the year then ended: and

e the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance the Health and Personal
Social Services (Northern Ireland) Order 1972, as amended and Department of Health, Social
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Services & Public Safety directions issued thereunder.
Opinion on other matters
In my opinion:

» the part of the Remuneration Report to be andited has been properly prepared in accordance
with the Health and Personal Social Services (Northem Ireland) Order 1972, as amended and
Department of Health, Social Services & Public Safety directions issued thereunder; and

o the information given in the Chairman's Report, Management Commentary and Performance
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.

Matters on which I report by exception
T have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which I report to you if, in my opinion:

o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

» the financial statements and part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records; or

o Thave not received all of the information and explanations I require for my audit; or

o the Statement on Internal Control does not reflect compliance with Department of Finance
and Personnel’s guidance.

Report

My observations on these financial statements are detailed at pages 78 to 79.

Kiren j @mw_%f

K7 Donuelly

Comptroller and Auditor General
Northern Ireland Aundit Office
106 University Street

Northern

BI7 IEU

28 June 2011
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE for the year ended 31 March 2011

Restated
2011 20140
NOTE £000s £000s
Expenditure
Staff costs 3.l (370,441) {367,749
Deprecistion 4.0 (13,246) (14,816)
Other Expenditure 4.0 {228,968) {224,440)
{612,655) {607,005)
Income
Income from activities 5.1 33,097 29,073
Other Income 5.2 10,182 10,080
Transfers from reserves for donated property, plant, equipment & intangibles 53 268 294
43,547 39,447
Net Expenditure (569,108) (567,558)
Revenue Resource Limit (RRL) 25.1 569,165 567,604
Surplus / (deficit) against RRL 57 46
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENDITURE Restated
2011 2010
NOTE £000s £008s
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment 6.1/63/10 1,960 14,079
Net gain/{loss) on revaluation of Intangibles 7.1/73/10 0 0
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of available for sales financial assets 0 0
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENDITURE for the year ended 31 March 2011 (567,148) (553,479)

The notes on pages 22 to 77 form part of these accounts.
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
Note
Cashflows from cperating activities
Net expenditure after interest
Adjustments for non cash costs

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Movements in payables relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment
Movements in payables relating to finance leases

Movements in payables relating toPF] and other service concession arrangement
contracts

Use of provisions 16

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Cashflows from investing activities

{Purchase of property, plant & equipment) 6
(Purchase of intangible assets) 7
Proceeds of disposal of property, plant & equipment

Proceeds on disposal of intangibles ,

Proceeds on disposal of assets held for resale

Net Cash (Outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Grant in aid

Cap element of payments - finance leases and on balance sheet (SoFP) PFI and other

service concession arrangements

Net financing

Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents in the period

Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 13
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the period 13

The notes on pages 22 to 77 form part of these accounts.
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2011
£000s

(569,108)
31,047
4,333

(81)
19,384

(3,258)
50

0
(7.447)

(525,080)

(15,931)
(980)

3

0

0

(16,908)

541,035

(50

540,985

(1,003)
3,565
2,562

Restated
2010
£000s

(567,558)
29,914
(5,502)

156
17,613

623
187

0
(8,362)

(532,929)

(10,873)
(384)

15

0

0

(11,242)

543,717

(187)

543,530

(641)
4,206
3,565
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NORTHERN

HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1.1

1.2

13

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Authority

These accounts have been prepared in a form determined by the Department of
Health, Social Services and Public Safety based on guidance from the
Department of Finance and Personnel’s Financial Reporting manual (FReM) and
in accordance with the requirements of Article 90(2)(a) of the Health and
Personal Social Services (Northern Ireland) Order 1972 No 1265 (NI 14) as
amended by Article 6 of the Audit and Accountability (Northern Ireland)
Order 2003.

The accounting policies follow IFRS to the extent that it is meaningful and
appropriate to HSC Trusts. Where a choice of accounting policy is permitted,
the accounting policy which has been judged to be most appropriate to the
particular circumstances of the Trust for the purpose of giving a true and fair
view has been selected. The Trust’s accounting policies have been applied
consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the
accounts.

Accounting convention
These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention
modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

Currency and Rounding
These accounts are presented in UK Pounds sterling. The figures in the
accounts are shown to the nearest £1,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment assets comprise Land, Buildings, Dwellings,
Transport Equipment, Plant & Machinery, Information Technology, Furniture
& Fittings, and Assets under Construction.

Recognition

Property, plant and equipment must be capitalised if:

e it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

e it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential
will be supplied to, the Trust;

e it is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

o the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and

® the item has cost of at least £5,000; or

e Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £3,000 and
individually have a cost of more than £1,000, where the assets are functionally
interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated
to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under single managerial control;
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or

e Jtems form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new
building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost.

On initial recognition property, plant and equipment are measured at cost
including any expenditure such as installation, directly attributable to bringing
them into working condition. Items classified as “under construction” are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position to the extent that money has
been paid or a liability has been incurred.

Valuation of Land and Buildings

Land and buildings are carried at the last professional valuation, in
accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (Statement of
Asset Valuation Practice) Appraisal and Valuation Standards in so far as
these are consistent with the specific needs of the HSC.

The last valuation was carried out on 31 January 2010 by Land and Property
Services (LPS) which is an independent executive body within the Department
of Finance and Personnel. The valuers are qualified to meet the ‘Member of
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors’ (MRICS) standard.

Professional revaluations of land and buildings are undertaken at least once in
every five year period and are revalued annually, between professional
valuations, using indices provided by LPS,

Land and buildings used for the Trust’s services or for administrative purposes are
stated in the statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the
fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Fair values are determined as follows:

¢ Land and non-specialised buildings — open market value for existing use

¢ Specialised buildings — depreciated replacement cost

e Properties surplus to requirements — the lower of open market value less any
material directly attributable selling costs, or book value at date of moving to non
current assets,

Modern Equivalent Asset

DFP has adopted a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations
based on modem equivalent assets and, where it would meet the location
requirements of the service being provided, an alternative site can be valued.

Land and Property Services (LPS) have included this requirement within the latest
valuation.
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1.4

Assets Under Construction (AUC)

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are
carried at cost, less any impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees as
allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value. Assets are revalued and
depreciation commences when they are brought into use.

Fixtures and Equipment

Until 31 March 2008, fixtures and equipment were carried at replacement cost, as
assessed by indexation. From 1 April 2008 HSC entities had the option to elect to
cease indexing all short life assets (other than IT). Short life IT assets are not
indexed. Short life is defined as a useful life of up to and including 5 years. The
carrying value of existing assets at that date were written off over their remaining
useful lives and new fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost
as this is not considered to be materially different from fair value.

Where estimated life of fixtures and equipment exceed 5 years, suitable indices
will be applied each year and depreciation will be based on indexed amount.

Revaluation Reserve

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the revaluation reserve except when
it reverses an impairment for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure,
in which case it is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously
charged there. A revaluation decrease is recognised as an impairment charged to
the revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the
asset and, thereafter, to expenditure.

Depreciation :

No depreciation is provided on freehold land since land has unlimited or a very
long established useful life. Items under construction are not depreciated until they
are commissioned. Properties that are surplus to requirements and which meet the
definition of “non current assets held for sale “ are also not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation is charged to write off the costs or valuation of property,
plant and equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual value,
over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of
economic benefits or service potential of the assets. Assets held under finance
leases are also depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life of an asset is the period over which the Trust expects to obtain economic
benefits or service potential from the asset. Estimated useful lives and residual
values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a
prospective basis. The following asset lives have been used.

Asget Type Asset Life

Freehold Buildings 25 — 60 years

Leasehold property Remaining period of lease
IT Assets 3 —10 years

Intangible assets : 3 - 10 years

Other Equipment 3 —15 years
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1.5

1.6

1.7

Impairment loss

If there has been an impairment loss due to a general change in prices, the asset is
written down to its recoverable amount, with the loss charged to the revaluation
reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and,
thereafter, to expenditure. If the impairment is due to the consumption of
economic benefits the full amount of the impairment is charged to the Net
Expenditure account and an amount up to the value of the impairment in the
revaluation reserve is transferred to the General fund. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been
determined had there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the
impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously
charged there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.

Subsequent expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification,
the directly attributable cost is capitalised. Where subsequent expenditure which
meets the definition of capital restores the asset to its original specification, the
expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is
written-out and charged to operating expenses.

The overall useful life of the Trust’s buildings takes account of the fact that
different components of those buildings have different useful lives. This ensures.
that depreciation is charged on those assets at the same rate as if separate
components had been identified and depreciated at different rates.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise software and licences. Software that is integral to the
operating of hardware, for example an operating system is capitalised as part of
the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software that is not integral to
the operation of hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an
intangible asset. Expenditure on research is not capitalised: it is recognised as an
operating expense in the period in which it is incurred. Internally-generated assets
are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it

e the ability to sell or use the intangible asset

¢ how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or
service potential

# the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the intangible asset and sell or use it

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development
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1.8

1.9

Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are
capable of sale separately from the rest of the Trust’s business or which arise from
contractual or other legal rights. Intangible assets are considered to have a finite
life. They are recognised only when it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust; where the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All single items over £5,000 in value must be
capitalised while intangible assets which fall within the grouped asset definition
must be capitalised if their individual value is at least £1,000 each and the group is
at least £5,000 in value. '

The amount recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date of commencement of the intangible asset, until
it is complete and ready for use.

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference
to an active market, and as no active market currently exists depreciated
replacement cost has been used as fair value.

Donated assets

Donated non-current assets are capitalised at their fair value on receipt, with a
matching credit to the donated asset reserve. They are valued, depreciated and
impaired as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on
revaluations and impairments are taken to the donated asset reserve and, each year,
an amount equal to the depreciation charge on the asset is released from the
donated asset reserve to offset the expenditure. On sale of donated assets, the net
book value is transferred from the Donated Asset Reserve to the General Reserve.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
In order to meet this definition IFRS 5 requires that the asset must be immediately
available for sale in its current condition and that the sale is highly probable. A sale
is regarded as highly probable where an active plan is in place to find a buyer for
the asset and the sale is considered likely to be concluded within one year. Non-
current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value, less any material directly attributable selling costs. Fair
value is open market value, where one is available, including alternative uses.
Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount. The profit from sale of land which is a non
depreciating asset is recognised within income. The loss from sale of land or
profit/loss from sale of depreciating assets is shown within operating expenses. On
disposal, the balance for the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to the
general reserve. For donated and government-granted assets, a transfer is made to
or from the relevant reserve to the profit/loss on disposal account so that no profit
or loss is recognised in income or expenses. The remaining surplus or deficit in the
Donated Asset Reserve or government grant reserve is then transferred to General
Reserve.
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1.16

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

L15

Property, plant or equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify
for recognition as held for sale. Instead, it is retained as an operational asset and
its economic life is adjusted. The asset is de-recognised when it is scrapped or
demolished.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. This is
considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover
of stocks.

Income

Operating Income relates directly to the operating activities of the Trust and is
recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured
at the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Grant in Aid

Funding received from other entities, including the Department and the Health
and Social Care Board are accounted for as grant in aid and are reflected
through reserves.

Investments
The Trust does not have any investments.

Other expenses _

Other operating expenses for goods or services are recognised when, and to
the extent that, they have been received. They are measured at the fair value of
the consideration payable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are
investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Trust as lessee

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially
recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease
obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
on interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognised in calculating the Trust’s surplus/deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
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over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability and
subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are
separated. Leased land may be either an operating lease or a Finance lease
depending on the conditions in the lease agreement and following the general
guidance set out in IAS 17. Leased buildings are assessed as to whether they
are operating or finance leases.

The Trust as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at
the amount of the Trust’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Trust’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.16 Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions.
DFP has determined that government bodies shall account for infrastructure PFI
schemes where the government body controls the use of the infrastructure and the
residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the arrangement as service
concession arrangements, following the principles of the requirements of IFRIC
12, The Trust therefore recognises the PFI asset as an item of property, plant and
equipment together with a liability to pay for it. The services received under the
contract are recorded as operating expenses.

The annual unitary payment is separated into the following component parts, using
appropriate estimation techniques where necessary:

a)  Payment for the fair value of services received;

b)  Payment for the PFI asset, including replacement of components and

c) Payment for finance (interest costs).

Services received
The fair value of services received in the year is recorded under the relevant
expenditure headings within ‘operating expenses’.
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PFI Assets

The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, when they come
into use. The assets are measured initjally at fair value in accordance with the
principles of IAS 17. Subsequently, the assets are measured at fair value, which is
kept up to date in accordance with the Trust’s approach for each relevant class of
asset in accordance with the principles of IAS 16.

PFI liability

A PF1 liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is
measured initially at the same amount as the fair value of the PFI assets and is
subsequently measured as a finance lease liability in accordance with IAS 17.

An annual finance cost is calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the
lease to the opening lease liability for the period, and is charged to ‘Finance Costs’
within the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.

The element of the annual unitary payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental
is applied to meet the annual finance cost and to repay the lease liability over the
contract term.

An element of the annual unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is
allocated to the finance lease. In accordance with IAS 17, this amount is not
included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead treated as contingent rent
and is expensed as incurred. In substance, this amount is a finance cost in respect of
the liability and the expense is presented as a contingent finance cost in the
Statement of Net Comprehensive Income.

Lifecycle replacement C

Components of the asset replaced by the operator during the contract (“lifecycle
replacement’) are capitalised where they meet the Trust’s criteria for capital
expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are provided by the operator and
are measured initially at their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary payment allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-
determined for each year of the contract from the operator’s planned programme of
lifecycle replacement. Where the lifecycle component is provided earlier or later
than expected, a short-term finance lease liability or prepayment is reco gnised
respectively.

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined
in the contract, the difference is recognised as an expense when the replacement is
provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount determined in the contract, the
difference is treated as a ‘free’ asset and a deferred income balance is recognised.
The deferred income is released to the operating income over the shorter of the
remaining contract period or the useful economic life of the replacement
component.

Assets contributed by the Trust to the operator for use in the scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be recognised as items of
property, plant and equipment in the Trust’s Statement of Financial Position.



1.17

Other assets contributed by the Trust to the operator

Assets contributed (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the Trust to the
operator before the asset is brought into use, which are intended to defray the
operator’s capital costs, are recognised initially as prepayments during the
construction phase of the coniract. Subsequently, when the asset is made available
to the Trust, the prepayment is treated as an initial payment towards the finance
lease liability and is set against the carrying value of the liability.

Finanecial instruments
e Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position when the
Trust becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade
receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are
derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the asset has been
transferred.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value.

s Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Statement of Financial Position when the
Trust becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, in
the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received.
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been discharged, that
is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.

¢ Financial risk management

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during
the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its
activities. Because of the relationships with HSC Commissioners, and the manner in
which they are funded, financial instruments play a more limited role within Trusts in
creating risk than would apply to a non public sector body of a similar size, therefore
Trusts are not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities.
Trusts have limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and
liabilities are generated by day to day operational activities rather than being held to
change the risks facing the Trusts in undertaking activities. Therefore the HSC is
exposed to little credit, liquidity or market risk.

s Currency risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of
transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and Sterling based. The Trust

has no overseas operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate
fluctuations.
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1.18

o [nterest rate risk

The Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest and therefore has low exposure to
interest rate fluctuations.

o (Credit risk

Because the majority of the Trust’s income comes from contracts with other public
sector bodies, the Trust has low exposure to credit risk.

o Liguidity risk

Since the Trust receives the majority of its funding through its principal
Commissioner which is voted through the Assembly, it is therefore not exposed to
significant liquidity risks.

Provisions

In accordance with IAS 37, provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its

- carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using DFP’s discount rate

of 2.2% in real terms.

The Trust has also disclosed the carrying amount at the beginning and end of the
period, additional provisions made, amounts used during the period, unused
amounts reversed during the period and increases in the discounted amount arising
from the passage of time and the affect of any change in the discount rate.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are
expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset
if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as
a provision. An onerous coniract is considered to exist where the Trust has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Trust has developed a detailed
formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those
affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or
announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a
restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the
restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the
restructuring and not associated with ongoing activities of the entity.
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1.19 Contingencies

1.20

Under IAS 37, the Trust discloses contingent liabilities where there is a possible
obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occwrrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Trust, or a present obligation that is not recognised
because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured sufficiently reliably. A
contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Trust. A contingent
asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their
present value.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Under the requirements of TAS 19: Employee Benefits, staff costs must be
recorded as an expense as soon as the organisation is obligated to pay them. This
includes the cost of any untaken leave that has been earned at the year end. This
cost has been estimated using average staff numbers and costs applied to the
average untaken leave balance determined from the results of a survey to ascertain
leave balances as at 31 March 2008. It is not anticipated that the level of untaken
leave will vary significantly from year to year. Flexi leave is not operationally
available to the majority of Trust staff and no Trust wide scheme exists, for those
staff groups who do avail of flexible working, therefore any benefit accrued is
deemed to be immaterial.

Retirement benefit costs

The Trust participates in the HSC Superannuation Scheme. Under this multi-
employer defined benefit scheme both the Trust and employees pay specified
percentages of pay into the scheme and the liability to pay benefit falls to the
DHSSPS. The Trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and
liabilities in the scheme on a consistent and reliable basis. Further information
regarding the HSC Superannuation Scheme can be found in the HSC Superannuation
Scheme Statement in the Departmental Resource Account for the Department of
Healih, Social Services and Public Safety.

The costs of early retirements are met by the Trust and charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure at the time the Trust commits itself to the
retirement.

As per the requirements of IAS 19, full actuarial valuations by a professionally
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1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

qualified actuary are required at intervals not exceeding four years. The actuary
reviews the most recent actuarial valuation at the Statement of Financial Position
date and updates it to reflect current conditions. The 31 March 2008 valuation is
used in the 2010/11 accounts.

Reserves

General Reserve
Accumulated surpluses are accounted for in the General Reserve

Revaluation Reserve
The Revaluation Reserve reflects the unrealised balance of cumulative indexation
and revaluation adjustments to assets other than donated assets.

Donated Asset Reserve
The Donated Asset Reserve represents the net book value of assets donated to the
Trust.

Value Added Tax

Where output VAT is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated
net of VAT. Iirrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or
included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets.

Third party assets

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not
recognised in the accoints since the Trust has no beneficial interest in them.
Details of third party assets are given in Note 24 to the accounts,

Government Grants

Government assistance for capital projects whether from UK, or Europe, is treated
as a Government grant even where there are no conditions specifically relating to
the operating activities of the entity other than the requirement to operate in certain
regions or industry sectors. Such grants (does not include grant-in-aid) are credited
to a government grant reserve and are released to income over the useful life of the
asset. The note to the financial statements distinguishes between grants from UK
government entities and grants from European Union.

Losses and Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that the Assembly would not have
contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By
their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject
to special control procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are
divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are
handled.
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1.26

1.27

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in
expenditure on an accruals basis; including losses which would have been made
good through insurance cover had HSC Trusts not been bearing their own risks
(with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditire).
However, the note on losses and special payments is compiled directly from the
losses and compensations register which reports amounts on an accruals basis with
the exception of provisions for future losses.

Accounting standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted

Under IAS 8 there is a requirement to disclose those standards issued but not yet
adopted.

Management has reviewed the new accounting policies that have been issued but
are not yet effective, nor adopted early for these accounts. Management consider
that these are unlikely to have a significant impact on the accounts in the period of
the initial application.,

Change in Accounting Policy / Prior Year Restatement

There were 3 changes in accounting policy during the year. The prior year figures
have been changed in the accounts to reflect the change in accounting policy. In
the Statement of Financial Position the previous two years have been restated to
comply with IAS 1 paragraph 29. The changes were;

(1) Capital Charges — Cost of Capital

One of the impacts of the HM Treasury alignment project to closer align budgets,
estimates and accounts has resulted in the removal of cost of capital. Therefore
from 2010-11 onwards the Trust is no longer required to reflect a notional cost of
capital within its accounts. Expenditure and non cash RRL have been restated in
the comparative years to reflect this.

2009/10 £000
Statement of Comprehensive
Net Expenditure 11,839
RRL 11,839

(ii) Clinical Negligence

As a result of new budgetary arrangements for the HSC, following changes in HM
Treasury budgeting guidance, cash funding to HSC bodies is now treated as prant
m aid, and financial performance is measured with reference to a Revenue
Resource Limit (RRL). The relevant changes were first introduced to Trust
accounts in 2008/09, and then to the HSCB accounts in 2009/10.
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However, as a result of the specific circumstances and more complex accounting
arrangements relating to clinical negligence transactions and balances, the
Department obtained dispensation from DFP which allowed HSC bodies to
continue to cover clinical negligence costs by match funding. This was managed
through the Clinical Negligence Central Fund such that re-imbursements
receivable from the Central Fund in respect of clinical negligence provisions and
liabilities were accounted for as income and reflected within debtors.

Clinical negligence provision continues to be fully funded but rather than being
reimbursed by Central Fund, it is now matched by RRL non cash cover. The
Ceniral Fund will no longer be used to administer settlement of clinical negligence
claims; rather HSC bodies will draw cash to cover clinical negligence settlements
as grant in aid directly from the Department.

HSC bodies are now required to adopt this policy in full and have therefore
restated any debtors in respect of amounts reimbursable from the Central Fund.

Income, receivables and non cash RRL have been restated in the comparative years
to reflect this.

2009/10  £000 2008/09 £000

Income | 2,366 Receivables | 10,597

RRL 2,366 Reserves 10,597

(iii) Impairment

Previously all impairments were charged to the Revaluation Reserve if one existed
before the remaining amount was charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure. Treasury / DFP guidance for 2010-11 and future periods is that
economic impairments should be charged in full to the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure with a corresponding transfer being made from
the Revaluation Reserve to the General Reserve. This is considered to be more
transparent than the IFRS approach to impairments. There is no change in policy in
respect of price impairments. This change did not have any impact on the accounts
and a prior year restatement was not required
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 3 STAFF NUMBERS AND RELATED COSTS

3.1 Staff Costs

Staff costs comprise:

Wages & Salaries
Social Security costs
Other pension costs

Sub-Total

Capitalised staff costs

Total stalf costs reported in Statement of Comprehensive Expenditure

Less recoveries in respect of outward secondments

Total net costs

2011 2610
Restated
Permanently

Total employed stnllT Others Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s
318,700 311,067 7,633 317,326
20,276 20,276 0 19,785
32,266 32,266 0 31,406
371,242 363,609 7,633 368,517
801 739 62 768
370,441 362,870 7,571 367,749
2,258 2,304
368,183 365,445

The Trust participates in the HSC Supernnnuation Scheme. Under this multi-employer defined benefit scheme both the Trust and employees pay
specified percentages of pay into the scheme and the lisbility to pay benefit falls to the DHSSPSNIL The Trust is unable to identify its share of the

underlying assets and liabilities in the scheme on a consistent and reliable basis.

As per the requirements of LAS 19, full actuarint valuations by a professionally qualified actuary are required at intervals not exceeding four yesrs.
The actuary reviews the most recent actuarial valuation at the Statement of Financial Position date and updates it to reflect current conditions. A

full valuation as at 31 March 2008 was completed in 2010-11.

32 Average number of persons employed

The average number of whole time equivalent persons employed during the year was as follows;

2011 2010
Permanently
Teotal employed stafl Others Totat
No. No. No. No.
Medical and dental 556 504 52 556
Mursing and Midwifery 3,090 3,063 27 3,164
Professions Allied to medicine 791 775 16 779
Ancillaries 923 886 37 957
Administrative & Clerical 1,748 1,741 7 1,777
Ambulance Staff 0 0 0 0
Works 124 124 0 120
Other Professionsl and technical 17 317 0 306
Social Services 1,888 1,854 34 1,903
Other 0
Total average number of persons employed 9,437 9,264 173 9,562
Less average staff number relating to capitalised staff costs 16 16 (] 17
Less average staff number in respect of outward secondments 73 73 0 80
Total net average number of persons employed 9,348 9,175 173 9,465
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TD THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 MARCH 2011

NOTE 3 STAFF NUMBERS AND RELATED COSTS

33 Senior Employees’ Remuneratian

The anlary, penston entitlements and the value ol any (azable benefity In ddod of the smost seniar membess off the Trust were as foliovs;

2010-11 200510 01011
Benehils in Benelils in
Bonus/ Kind Donus / Kind Reatincrense in Real
Performance  {Rounded Perdormance {Rounded  pension aod related Toial accrued pensionat CETV nt CETVal  incrense
Satary pay tonearest  Salary pay tonenrest  fump sum atape 50 age 60 and related lump 31030 3170311 in CETV

Nnmne £3005 £00D £100) £000s £aoa £100) £000s wum £00Dx £000s F2uili £000s

Naon-Execulive Members

1 Stewart 25-10 [ a 25-10 1] "} i} o 0 L] a

€ Ackah 510 0 a 5-10 1] a ] o 4] L ]

A McCann 5.10 o a 5-10 [ 0 1] 1] ] L] a

S Forsythe 510 ] L] 5-10 [ 1} i 1] a a ]

P Monigamery 5.10 ] ] 5-10 1] ] o 1] L] L] ]

1 Moare 5.0 ] L] 5-10 1] 1} 0 [ a a il

M Rankin 5-10 bl a 5-10 1] 1] ] 0 ] 0 1]

D Whitingtan 5-18 1 L] 5-10 1] 1} 0 [t} a 0 1]

Execuiive Members

S Donaghy {1} 075 o a 1] o

L O'N«ili{2} 3540 o o o 13 o

P Flanagen 145-150 13 0 14D-145 1} 4 Oo2S5pluslump 601065 phes Tump sum 1338 1315 -3
sum 510 1.5 19010195

M Sloan A5G0 0 4 A5.90 1] 1] Otol5 pluslump 25 to 30 ples lump sum 476 435 41
semOlo23 EQ to S

J Melasgh W15 o ] 0-15 o 0 Ow-25plalump 30t 35 plus fump sum 585 36 -39
sum O to -2.5 901095

O Donselly 65-70 o L] 65-18 0 0 0o-25plusfump 25 to 30 plus lump sum 540 509 -3t
sum O to -2.5 ED 10 BS

€ Worthington (1) 80-33 1] 300 75-Ba i} 0 2SwSplushmp 30 to 33 plus lemp sum [1:x3 T ]
sum7.510 18 100 10 105

U Cunning (3) 60-65 13 0 L1} 1] 0 Oto-LSglusjump 20 ta 25 plus lump $vm 478 448 -0
sum Do -2.5 o5

V Jacksan (4) 85.50 o ] 15-40 o 0 0 o 1] 0 a

C Ponaghy (5) 70-15 1] 0 75-80 1} 0 0 ] a 0 a

M Dillan {6} 58-55 ] 0 5560 0 0 1] 1] ] ] a

B Sson (T} 10-15 1] 0 0.8 1] ] 0 a ] 4 a

N Ewvans {8) [} 1] ] 60-65 4] 0 1] 1] a 0 4]

N Guckion (9) 1] 0 0 1540 o o [ 1] 0 (] a

M Raoulston (16} [ [} 0 5-10 ] L] 1} 1] L] 0 a

As Non-Execulive members de not receive pensionable remuneration, there will b no entries in respect of far Non-E:

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the aetuarially nssessed capital value of the pension scheme benefils accrued by a member a1 o panticuler point in time. The benefita valeed are the member's aecrued
benefits and any cuntingent spousc’s pension payable fom the scheme, A CETV is o poyment made hy a pension scheme, or armngement to sezure pension benzdits in another pension scheme or g when

the member leaves & scheme and choosex 1o transfer the benefits secerucd in thelr former scheme. The pension fiptres shown refale 1o the benefis thay the individuat hoy ascerued s o consequence of their wola]
membership of the pension scheme, not just their sesvice in o seajor capacity to which the disclosure applics. The CETV Fgures and the other pensian details, include the valuz ol any pension benefits in anolhe

scheme or as which the individual has fered to the HPSS pension scheme. They also include any additiasal pension heneiit accrued to the member os a result of their purchasing sdditional years of
pension servies in the seheme a1 thelr ewn enst.
CETV4 nne enleulsizd within the guidelines p ibed by the instiutz and Faculty of Actunsies.

Neal Enerease in CETY - ‘This reflects the increase in CETV effectively fissded by the mployer, 11 inkes acequnt of the increase in accrued pension due Lo inflation, contributions paid by the emplayes {(Including the
value of ony benefits transferred From onather pension scheme or ) ond uscs miarket visluation factors for the 51t and end of the period,

{1} Appoinizd 20/0%10 - esté A full year equivalent salary E135-E140K

{2} Appainted G175 110 - esth d Full year equivalent sslary E£85-£50K. CETV amounts availoble fom BSO occounts.

{3} Acting Director of Nursing Services wilh effect from 21/05/1Q - estimaled full year equivalent solary E65-LTOK

{4} Interim Director of Acute Hospitat Services - seconded from BHSCT on BE/11/0%. CETY amounts ovailble from BHSCT accounts
{5} Secondment ended 19/09/1¢ - estimated full year equivalent selary £145-£150K CETV amoun! avajiable from BHSCT accouats
{6} Secondment ended 10910 - estimated full year equivalent sslary £100-L£105K. CETV amount ovailable from BHSCT

{7) Leit 31/05/10 - estimnied full year equivalent sabary £75 - £BOK

{8} Lef 30/09/09

(9} Lef 20/09/09

(10} Acting Direesor with 2fTeer fioes 16/02/09 to 03/05/09,
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 3 STAFF NUMBERS AND RELATED COSTS
34 Reporting of carly retirement and other compensation scheme- exit packages

2011 2016

Numberof Numberof other Toizl number of exit Number of  Number of other Totnl number of

Exit pachage cost compulsory departures pachages by cost compulsory departures exit pachnges hy
band redundancics ngreed band redundancics ngrecd cost baad
<£10,000 i} 6 & 0 1 1l
£10,001 - £25,000 0 13 13 ] [ 6
£25,001 - £50,000 0 I8 18 0 I8 16
£50,001 - £100,000 1] 40 40 1] 19 19
£100,001- £150,000 0 5 5 a k] 3
£150,001- £200,000 0 2 2 0 5 5
£200,001- £250,000 o 0 0 0 1 1
Total number of exit

pochages by type 0 84 84 0 51 51

£000s £000s

Total Resource Cost 1] ) 4,610 3,605

Redundancy and other depurture costs have been paid in accardance with the provisions of the HSC Pension Scheme Regulations and
the Compensation for Premature Retirement Regulutions, statutory provisions made under the Superannuntion Act 1972, The above
exit costs were met from existing RPA and/or CSR. provisions created some yenrs ago. These costs where secounted for when the
provisions were created and are therefore reflected as utilisations within the provisions note and have no impact upon net expenditure.
Due to timing differences the Total Resource Cost will not sgree to the utilised amount in the Note 16 Provisions.The table shows
exits approved snd sgreed during the year which have been charged to the provision account. Where early retirements have been
egreed, the additional costs are met by the employing authority and not by the HSC pension scheme. 1ll-health retirement cosis are met
by the pension scheme and sre not incloded in the table.
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3f MARCH 2011

NOTE 3 STAFF NUMBERS AND RELATED COSTS

2011 2010
. 3.5 Staff Benefits £000s £000s
Staff benefits 0 0
3.6 Trust Management Costs Restated
2011 2010
£000s £000s
Trust Management Costs 23,632 23,892
Income:
RRL 569,165 567,604
Income per Note 5 43,547 39,447
Non cash RRL for movement in clinical negligence provision (6,017) (2,366)
Less interest receivable 0 0
Total Income 606,695 604,685
% of total income 3.90% 3.95%

The above information is based on the Audit Commission's definition “M2" Trust
management costs, as detailed in HSS (THR) 2/99.

The Trust Management Costs have been restated for 09/10 a part of a regional exercise to add
consistency of calculation between the Trusts. The agreed consistent basis was used to calculate the
10/11 costs.

.7 Retirements due to ill-health
During 2010/11 there were 31 early retirements from the Trust (2009/10 39}, agreed on the grounds

of ill-health. The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £205K
(2009/10 £128K.). These costs are borne by the HSC Pension Scheme.
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 4 OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating Expenses

4.0 Operating Expenses are as follows:-

Purchase of care from non-HPSS bodies
Revenue Grants to voluntary organisations
Capital Grants to voluntary organisations
Personal social services

Recharges from other HSC organisations
Supplies and services - Clinical
Supplies and services - General
Establishment ’

Transport

Premises

Bad debts

Rentals under operating leases

Rentals under finance leases

Finance cost of finance leases

Interest charges

PF1 and other service concession arrangements service charges
Research & Development expenditure
Clinical Negligence - other expenditure
BSO - provision of services

Training

Professional Fees

Patients Travelling Expenses

Costs of exit packages not provided for
Elective Care

WFI audit fee

Miscellaneous expenditure

Non cash items

Depreciation

Amortisation

Impairments

(Profit) on disposal of assets {excluding profit on land)
Loss on disposal of assets ( including land)

Provisions provided for in year

Unwinding of discount on provisions

Auditors remuneration

Total

2011

£000s
112,465
0
0
10,721
598
33,004
5,791
15,313
1,377
17,605
4
2,034
(83)
44
0
1,192
823
0
2,135
641
1,081
783
0
2,699
3
2,760

13,246
387
10,856
3

0
6,632

68
56

242,214

Restated
2010
£000s
105,735
0
0
10,592
551
33,321
6,515
14,367
1,492
17,306
17
1,963
{180)
54
(]
1,133
630
0
1,620
1,257
932
778
0
7,334
0
3,642

14,816
466
12,451
0

8
2,335
50

71

239,256

During the year the Trust purchased non audit services from its external auditor (NIAO) in relation

to the Nationa} Fraud Initiative amounting to £3X.
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
NOTE 5 INCOME

5.1 Income from Activities

GB/Republic of Ireland Health Authorities
HSC Trusts

Non-HSC:- Private patients

Non-HSC:- Other

Clients contributions

Total

5.2 Other Operating Income

Other income from non-patient services
Seconded staff

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure
Profit on disposal of land

Interest receivable

Total

5.3 Transfers from reserves for donated property, plant, equipment & intangibles

Donated asset reserve transfer for impairment
Donated asset reserve transfer for depreciation and amortisation
Taotal

TOTAL INCOME

42

Restated
2011 2010
£000s £000s
0 0
0 0
187 169
1,845 1,717
31,065 27,187
33,097 29,073
Restated
2011 2010
£000s £000s
7,924 7,776
2,258 2,304
0 0
)] 0
0 0
10,182 10,080
Restated
2011 2010
£000s £000s
0 0
268 294
268 294
43,547 39,447




NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 6 Property, Plant & Equipment

Summary

Net book value:

Land

Buildings (excluding dwellings)
Dwellings

Assets Under Construction

Plant and machinery (Equipment)
Transport Equipment
Information Technology (IT)
Fumniture & Fittings

Total PPE - 31 March 2011

Net book value:

Land

Buildings (excluding dwellings)
Dwellings

Assets Under Construction

Plant and machinery (Equipment)
Transport Equipment
Information Technology (IT)
Furniture & Fittings

Total PPE - 31 March 2010

2011

Purchased Donated Taotal

£000s £000s £000s
94,868 240 95,108
217,240 868 218,108
21,853 0 21,853
4,957 1,327 6,284
16,506 1,324 17,830
2,787 0 2,787
3,732 2 3,734
663 119 782
362,606 3,880 366,486

2010

Purchased Donated Total

£000s £000s £000s
112,464 282 112,746
209,773 367 210,640
21,990 0 21,990
1,865 282 2,147
14,760 1,318 16,078
2,330 0 2,330
2,126 4 2,130
478 114 592
365,786 2,867 368,653

Professicnal revaluations of land and buildings are undertaken by Land and Property
Services (LPS) at least once in every five year period and are revalued annually, between
professional valuations, using indices provided by LPS. See Accounting Policy Note 1,

Section 1.3 for more details of valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

43



NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO TRE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

NOTE 6.3 Properly, Flunt & Equipment - Purehased nssets - year ended 31 Mareh 2011

Cast or Yaluntion

At April 2010
Indcxation
Additions
Reclassifications
Transfers
Revaluation
{Impoirments)
{Disposnls)

At 31 March 2011

Accumuloted
Deprecialion
At 1 April 2010
Indexation
Reclassifications
Transfers
Revajuation
{Impnirments)
{Disposals}
Provided dusing the
year

At 31 March 2011
Nel Boak Value
At 31 Mnrch 2011

At 31 March 2000

Aaset finzncing

Owned
Finonce Leased

On b/s PFl and ather
service concession
amangemenls contracts

Net Book Volue
Al 31 Maorch 2011

The totu] omount of deprecintion charged in the Statement of Comprhensive Net Expenditure Account in respect ofassets beld under

Bulldinps Plant and Informatitn
{excluding Assels under Machinery Transpori Technology | Furnilure and
Land dwellings) Dwellings Canstruction (Equipment) Equip T Fittings Total
£000s £000s £000s £00s £00s £ £000s £0003 £000s
112,454 209,713 21,990 I,B65 39,722 7,078 1,925 771 401,588
o 7,198 632 0 577 1] a 1} 8,407
a 6,974 535 3,092 4,630 L410 2,209 249 19,189
a 0 0 [1} o 0 0 (] [i}
{279 n (22} 0 o [} (52) ] (331)
1] 0 i} 0 0 0 0 0 0
(17,263) 750 {502) 0 1} 0 ] [} {17,015)
{34 {205) 1} 0 (1,611) (121} ] o {1,991}
94,868 224,512 22,633 4,957 43,318 8,367 1,172 1,020 409,847
0 0 0 1] 24962 4,748 5,799 293 35,802
] 0 0 1} 316 [i} o 1 36
0 0 0 ] 0 o 0 0 1]
0 ] 0 0 1] o {52) 1] {52)
0 ] 0 1] 0 0 v} o 1]
1] 0 lyl a ] 0 4 0 n
0 (69) [ 0 {1,611} (121 o o (1.,796)
0 7,336 187 0 3,145 953 693 64 12,978
[ 7,272 780 [ 26,812 5530 a,440¢ 357 47,241
94,868 217,240 21,853 4,957 16,506 2,787 3132 663 162,606
112,464 209,773 21,800 1,865 14,760 2,330 1,126 a8 65,786
94,868 2§7,290 21,853 4,957 16,253 2,787 3,732 663 362,353
) L] 0 0 253 0 0 0 253
1] 0 0 0 a o 1] 1] 0
94,868 217,240 21,853 4,957 16,508 2,787 3,731 663 362,606

finnnee Jeeses and hire purchose contracts is £16K {2010 £154K)
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 6.2 Praperty, Plant & Equipment - Purchased assets - year ended 31 March 2010

Cost or Valuatian

AL T Apstl 2009
Indexation
Additions
Reclossifications
Transfers
Revaluation
(Imprirments)
{Disposals)

At 31 Morch 2010

Accumulated
Beprecintinn

At 1 April 2009
Indexation
Reclassifications
Trnsiess
Revaluation
{Impainments)
{Dispasals)
Provided during the
year

A3l March2010
Nel Book Value
At 1 April 2009

At 31 March 2010

Azsed finnncing

QOwned
Finance Leased

On b/s PFE and other
service concession
armngements contracts

Net Book Volue
At 31 Mnrch 2019

Ausset financing
Owned
Finnnee Lensed

On b/s PFI and ather
service concession
arTangements contracts

MNet Book Value
At 1 Apnl 2000

Buildinga Piant and Informatitn
(excluding Aassels under Machinery Transport Technology | Furnitore nndd
Land dwellings) Dwellinps Construction {Equipment) Equipment [ )] Fittings Total
£000s 00 £000s £00Hs £0{Hs 2004s £000s £000s £000s

117,915 245477 23,863 1,732 35,738 6,199 6,542 600 438,266
o ] 1] 0 G538 44 [} ¢ 1,199

1} 3,188 348 1,143 3,379 538 1,383 m 10,250

0 22 20 0 o 0 0 ¢ 0

v} 0 1,002 (1,002) ] 0 0 o [

5,409 3,552 537 0 1 0 0 0 9,498
(10.860) {42,551} {3,715} ] [H 1] 0 1] {57,126)
0 {15) (23} {B) (50) (403) 0 o {4939}
112,464 208,173 21,990 1,865 35,722 7.078 1,925 771 401,588
° 35,739 3,408 0 21,832 4,084 4,998 246 70,305

] 0 [} 0 345 347 0 o 692

] ; 33} 0 [H 0 ] [} 1]

0 0 14 0 1] 1] 0 1} 0
1] {10,72%) {2,042) 0 0 0 0 0 {12,171}
0 {34,261) 2,217 0 o 0 i 0 (36,478)
0 (15} 0 0 {50) {403} ¢ 0 {468)

0 9,265 BS2 o 2,833 720 803 47 14,522

1) 1] [] [1] 24,962 4,748 5,799 103 35,802
117,915 209,738 20,455 1,732 13,9046 1015 1,546 354 261,961
112,464 208,773 21,950 1,165 14,760 1,330 2,116 478 365,786
112,464 209,773 21,950 1,845 14,450 2,330 Li26 478 365,476
] 0 0 ] 310 0 1 a kjli]

0 ] a [ 0 Q [t} a ]
112,464 108,773 21,940 1,865 14,760 1,330 1,126 418 365,786
117,915 209,738 20,455 1,732 13,397 2,315 1,546 354 367,452
0 0 4 ] 509 1] 1} 0 509

1] ] 0 0 0 ] 1} n [}
117915 209,738 20,455 1,732 13,906 1,315 1,546 354 367,961
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCIE 2011

NOTE 6.3 Property, Mlanl & Equipment - Donnied nasets - Year ended 31 Morch 2011

Cosl or Valuation

At 1 April 2010
Indexaiion
Addiiions
fteclossifications
Transfers
Revaluntion
{bmpatrmenis)
{Disposals)

At 11 March 2011

Accumulinied
Deprecintion
At1 April2010
Endexsifon
Reclassifications
Tronsfers
Revaluntion
{Impairmenis)
(Dispasals}

Provided during the year
A131 March 2011

Neit Book Value

A131 Maorch 2011

At 3 Mnrch 2010

Asset linancing

Owned
Finunce Leased

Oabis PFland other
service concession
SMANGEMENts LoRtracts

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2011

Duildings Tlant and Information
{excluding Asseis under Machinesy Tranapurt Tethnelogy | Furnitupe and
Land dwellings) Dwellliaps Censtruction | (Equipment) | Eguipment am Fittings Totnt
£000s £00{y £000g E000s £000s £000s 10003 £000x £000s
282 B&7 4] 282 213854 46 151 198 4,680
{42) 13 i} 1] 50 i} 0 1] 41
[} 4] 4] 1,045 Fiii} 1] 1} 15 1,260
a 4] 1] ] 4] o 0 ] 0
a o 4] ¢} [ ] 0 a 0
[i] 1} o 1] o ] 0 o 1}
o 0 o o 0 n 0 1] o
[1] 0 o 1] 1} ] 0 a 0
140 200 '] 1327 3,104 46 151 213 5.981
1} L] [i] a 1,536 46 147 B4 1,813
0 L] i} a 0 0 o ] 20
0 L] o [1] o 1] o 0 1]
0 L] ] a 0 1] 4] L] a
0 a 1] [i] 0 o o [i] (]
0 Li] 1] [1] a o 4] L] 4]
] Li] 1] 1] a 0 a o ¢]
] 32 1] [i] 123 o 2 1] 268
[1] Er] a [1] lé“ﬂ 45 149 94 1,101
140 268 0 QT 1324 0 2 ll=9 3850
pL.¥ ] 85T n 82 1318 0 4 114 28687
140 368 o 1,327 1324 k] 2 g 3,880
i a |} [\ 1} ] L] ] 0
1] /] 1] 1] ] ] Y] o 0
240 .[:%:] 1) 1327 1324 a 1 119 3880
et}
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 6.4 Property, Planl & Equipment - Donated nsaels - Year ended 31 March 2010

Cost or Voluation

At1 April 2009
Indexation
Additions
Reclussifications
Tranzlers
Revaluation
(Impoirments)
(Eyisposals)

At 3] March 2010

Accumulated
Deprecintion

At t Apsil 2009
Indexatinn
Reclassifications
Tronsfers
Revaluation
{Impoirments)
(Disposals)
Provided during the
year

A3 Merch 2010
Net Book Value
At | April 2009

At 31 March 2010

Asset financing

Qwned
Finonce Leased

On b/s PFI and other
service concession
omangements contracts

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2010

Asset finoneing

Owned
Finonce Lensed

On b/s PFI ond ather
service cancession
igangemenls contracts

Net Book Value
At | April 2009

Buildings Plant and Infarmation
(excluding Assels under Machinery Transport Technology { Furniture nnd
Land dwellings) Dwelllngs Construction (Equipenent) Equipment n Fittings Tatal
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s I00Ms £(H103 £000s

5} 1,258 1] 0 2,767 42 15t 198 5017
0 1] o 4 62 4 (1] 0 66

1] o 0 282 25 o ] 0 an7

0 [} 0 i ] ] [} ] 0

0 1] i ] 0 4 [} 0 o

1] 7 0 0 ] 0 1] 0 7
{379) {398} | 0 0 0 1 0 i
13 0 0 ft 0 o [ 0 0
82 867 1] 282 2.854 46 151 138 4,680
0 182 0 [} 1,262 39 136 7 1,13

0 a 1] [H] 22 4 [} 0 26

0 0 1] 0 1] il 4 3 0

)] 0 0 0 o 0 o 0 0
] n 1] 0 ] 0 0 {4 27
1] {203) o i] 0 0 0 & (203}

1 0 4 0 ] i 0 o 0

0 48 1] 0 222 3 1 10 294

0 0 ] [1] 1,536 46 147 B4 1,813
661 1,076 o 1] 1475 3 i5 124 3354
282 867 ] 282 1,318 '] 4 114 1,867
282 867 ] 282 1,318 0 4 114 2,867
0 3 0 o 0 0 0 ] 1]

0 L} 0 /] [t} 0 0 0 1]
282 a67 0 162 1318 ] 4 114 2,867
661 1,076 0 L] 1,473 3 15 124 3,354
0 0 b 0 ] [ 0 1 0

0 1} 1} Q i} 1] a 0 )
861 1,076 2 1] 1,475 3 35 124 3354
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 7 Intangible Assets

Summary

Net book value:

Software
Software licenses

Total Intangible assets - 31 March 2011

Net book value:

Software
Software licenses

Total Intangible assets - 31 March 2010

48

2011
Purchased Donated Total
£000s £000s £000s

0 0 0

1,767 0 1,767

1,767 0 1,767
2010
Purchased Donated Total
£000s £000s £000s

0 0 0

1,174 g 1,174

1,174 0 1,174




NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 7.1 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Purchased) - Year ended 31 March 2011

Software
licenses Software Taotal

Cost or Valuation £000s £000s £000s
At 1 April 2010 2,808 ) 2,808
Indexation 0 0 0
Additions 080 0 g80
Reclassifications 0 0 0
Transfers 52 ] 52
Revaluation o 0 0
(Impairments) 0 0 0
(Disposals) o 0 0
At 31 March 2011 3,840 0 3,840
Accuemulated Amortisation
At 1 April 2010 1,634 0 1,634
Indexation 0 0 0
Reclassifications 0 0 0
Transfers 52 0 52
Revaluation 0 ] 0
(¥mpairments) 0 0 0
{Disposals) 0 0 v
Provided during the year 387 0 387
At 31 March 2011 2,073 0 2,073
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2011 1,767 0 1,767
At 31 March 2010 1,174 0 1,174
Asset financing
Owned 1,767 0 1,767
Finance Leased 0 0
On b/s PFI and other service
concession arrangements contracts 0 0 0
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2011 1,767 0 1,767

The amount shown under Transfers relates to a transfer from purchased assets
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 7.2 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Purchased) - Year ended 31 March 2010

Cost or Valuation

At 1 April 2009
Indexation
Additions
Reclassifications
Transfers
Revaluation
{Impairments)
{Disposals)

At 31 March 2010

Accumuiated Amortisation
At 1 April 2009

Indexation

Reclassifications

Transfers

Revaluntion

(Impairments)

(Disposals)

Provided during the year

At3} March 2010
Net Book Value
At 1 April 2009

At3] March 2010

Asset financing

Owned
Finance Leased

On b/s PFI and other service
concession arrangements contracts

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2010

Assct financing

Owned
Finance Leased

On b/s PFI and other service
concession arrangements contracts

Net Book Value
At1 April 2009

Software
licenses Software Total
£000s EQG00s £000s

2,512 ] 2,512

0 0 0

384 0 384

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 ] 0
(88) 0 (88)

2,808 1] 2,808

1,256 0 1,256

0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 ]

1] 0 0

i ] 1]
(88) 0 (28)

466 0 466

1,634 0 1,634

1,256 0 1,256

1,174 (] 1,174

1,174 0 1,174

0 0 0

0 0 0

1,174 1] 1,174

1,256 0 1,256

0 0 0

0 0 0

1,256 0 1,256
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 7.3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Donated) - Year ended 31 March 2011

Software
licenses Software Total

Cost or Valuation £000s £000s £000s

At 1 April 2010 6
Indexation

Additions

Reclassifications

Transfers

Revaluation

{lmpairments)

{Disposals)

O OO0 oo
LoD oOo oo oo

[ I o - . T - R - . 5\

At 31 March 2011

=)
=
(=]

=)
=,

Accumulated Amortisation
At | April 2010

Indexation

Reclassifications

Transfers

Revaluation

{Impairments)

{Disposals)

Provided during the year

=]

OO0 o DO oo
[ I o I o I - o e e O |

oD 0000 o

=)
=
=

At 31 March 2011

=4
=

Net Book Value

At 31 March 2011 0 0

At 31 March 2010 0 0

Asset financing

Owned 0 ]
Finance Leased 0 0

On b/s PFI and other service
concession arrangements contracts 1] 0

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2011 0 0
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 7.4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Donsated) - Year ended 31 March 2010

Software
licenses Sofiware Total

Cast or Valuation £000s £000s £000s

At 1 April 2009
Indexation
Additions
Reclassifications
Transfers
Revaluation
(Impairments)
(Disposals)

h

Lo o B - I o Y - - Y e Y =
== e R = R T e o [ o e

[ == == e B e o Y e Y e Y Y

At 31 March 2010

=
o
()

f=ad
[

Amortisation
At | April 2009 66
Indexation
Reclassifications
Transfers

Revaluation
{Impairmenis}
{Disposals)

Provided during the year

[ B - i = e B e e Y
oo oOoOoo

COoO O oD oo ;h

At 31 March 2010 66

=

[=a)
[

Net Book Value

At 1 April 2000 0 0

At 31 March 2010 0 0

Asset financing

(=]
=]

Owned
Finance Leased it 0

On b/s PFI and other service
concession arrangements contracts 0 0

Net Book Value
At 31 March 2010 1] 0

Asset financing

Owned @ 0
Finance Leased 0] 0

On bfs PFI pnd other service
concession arrangements contracts 0 0

Net Book Value
At 'l April 2009 0 0
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

8.1 Financial instruments

The Trust did not have any financial instruments al either 31 March 2011 or 31 March 2010.
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE I1 INVENTORIES

Classifhication

Pharmacy Supplies

Building & Engineering Supplies
Laboratory Supplies

Heat, Light and Power

Other

Total

2011 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s

1,744 1,676 1,058

178 281 343

251 240 261

325 328 255

351 243 407

2,849 2,768 2,924
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 12 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts lalling due within one yenr
Trade receivebles

Deposits and advances

Other receivables

Trade and other Receivables

Prepayments and accrued income
Current part of PFI and other service concession arrangements

prepayment

Other current assets

Amounts [alling due after more than one year
Trade Receivables

Deposits and advances

Other receivables

Trade and other Receivables

Prepayments and acerited income

Other current assets falling due after more than one yenr

TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The balances are net of a provision for bad debts of
£399K (2010 £403K; 2009 £IRTK)

Restated Restated
2011 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s
5,355 5,368 5,918
[ 13 12
5,759 4,506 4,577
11,120 9,887 10,527
1,204 6,770 612
0 0 0
1,204 6,770 612
0 0 16
0 0 1]
0 0 0
0 1] 16
1] 0 0
0 0 16
11,120 9,887 10,543
1,204 6,770 612
12324 16,657 11,155
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 201

NOTE 13 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balance at 1st April
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Balance at 31st March

The following halances at 31 March were held at
Commercial banks and cash in hand

Baiance at 31st March

Restated Restated
2011 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s
3,565 4,206 32,970
(1,003) (641) (28,764)
2,562 3,565 4,206
2011 2010 24009
£000s £000s £000s
2,562 3,565 4,206
2,562 3,565 4,206
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 14 TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amounts falling due within one year
Other taxation and social security
Bank overdrafl

Trade capital payables

Trade revenue payables

Payroll payables

BSO payables

Other payables

Accruals and deferred income

Frade and other payables

Current part of finance leases

Current part of long term loans

Current part of imputed finance lease element of on balance sheet (SoFP) PFI and
other service concession arrangements contracts

Other current liabilities

Total payables falling due within one year

Amounts falling due after more than one year

Other Payables, accruals and deferred income

Trade and other payables

Finance leases

Imputed finance lease element of on balance sheet (SoFP) PFI and other service
concession arrangements contracts

Long term loans

Total non current other payables

TOTAL TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

60

2011 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s

7,568 7,330 7,508

0 0 0

6,065 2,807 3,430

19,677 16,243 11,403

34,700 24,074 13,092

13,520 11,702 8,862

94 34 95

0 0 0

81,624 62,150 44,350

56 50 126

0 0 0

0 0 0

56 50 126

81,680 62,240 44,516

0 0 0

0 0 0

219 275 386

0 0 0

0 0 0

219 775 386

81,899 62,515 44,902
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
NOTE 14 TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

NOTE 14.2 LOANS

The Trust did not have any loans payable at either 31 March 2011 or 31 March 2010,
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCQUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
NOTE 15 PROMPT PAYMENT POLICY

15.1 Public Seetor Payment Policy - Measure of Compliance

The Department requires that Trusls pay their non HSC trade creditors in accordance with the Better Payments Practice Code and
Governmenl Accounting Rules. The Trust's payment policy is consistent with the Better Payments Practice cade and Government

Accounting rules and its measure of compliance is;

2011 2011 2010 2010
Number Value Number Value
£000s £000s
Total bills poid 137,673 161,565 154,627 155,984
Total bills paid within 30 doy target or under agreed payment terms 131,636 156,376 136,449 142,874
% aof bills paid within 30 day target or under npreed payment terms 95.61% 96.79% 88.24% 91.60%
Total bills prid within 30 day target {for information only) 125,803 151,754 136,449 142,874

The measure of compliance in 2010/11 is based on the guidance
contained in HSC(F} 04/201 | which required the Trust to ensure that
the measurment of prompt payment compliance was made with
reference o a 30 day target or under agreed payment tarms.

15.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debis Regulations 2002

The amount included within Interest Payable arising from claims made by all businesses under this lepislation is as follows :

£

2011
Total 27

£

2010
0

This is also reflected as & fruitiess payment in Note 26
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTESTO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEARR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

NOTE 16 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES - 2011

Pensions relating

o former Pensions relating Clinleal CsSR RPA
directors to other stall Negligence  Restructuring  Reatructuring Other 2011
E000 £0040s failiit] £000s 1000 £000s 20008
Balonce at | April 2010 0 292 131 4,319 664 2,690 13,096
Provided in year 0 87 7.091 0 0 979 Bi37
{Provisions not required writtcn back) 0 (I8 (1,107) 1} 0 {400) {+.525)
{Provisions wtilised in the yeor) ] [eh)] (1,149) [ERIL] {664) {588) {7,447
Unwinding of discount 0 B 13 0 0 27 6B
Tolni os ot 31 March 204 | k] 342 11,359 1] 0 2,608 14,349

RPA/CSR nPA/CSR

2011 2,810
RPA /CSR utilised costs include the following; £000s £000s
Pension cosis for early relirement refecting
the single fump sum to buy over the full linbiliy 791 2,200
Redundancy costy 1,386 1,625
2,177 3,815

Provisions have been made for 6 types of polentink liability: Clinical Negligence, Emplayer's and Occupier's Liobility, Eorly Retiremenl, Infury Benefit, Employment Law and
Resteueturing {RPA and CSR). The provision for Early Reticement and Injury Benedit relates to the future linbilitics for the Trust based on infarmation provided by the HSC
Superannuation Branch. For Clinicol Negligence, Emplayer's and Occupice's claims and Employment Law the Trust hos esfimaied an appropriate level of provision based on professionol
legal advice. The estimate for the Restructuring provisions is based an infarmetion avaitable from HR and the DHSSPS ns a1 31/3/1 1. Note 4 reflects the ool charge within the
Operating Costs and Note 26 Losses and Spezial Payments will reflect the eelevant amounts ulilised.

Cumprehensive Net Expenditure Account charges 2001 2010
£0)s £000
Arising during the year 8,157 5,561
Reversed unused (1,525) {3.225)
Unwinding of discount 68 50
Totol charge within Qperating costs 6,700 2385
Analysis of expected timing of discounted cosh Nows
Pensions relatiog
to former Pensions relating Clinleal CSR RPA
direciors 1o other stoff Negligence  Restructuring  Restrueturing Cther 2051
£00H)s 2000 £{HH}s £000s £Q00s £00 £000s
Within 5 yeors [} 27 11,399 0 [} 1,492 12,318
6-10 yeors s} 137 0 0 [} 477 614
Thereaficr 1] 178 i 1] [H] 639 417
Tolol as 1 31 Morch 2011 0 342 11,392 1] 1] 2,608 14,349
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 16 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES - 2060

Pensions relating to  Pensions relating Clinical csn RrA
former directors to other stafl Neplipence Restructuring  Restructuring Other 2010
£0010s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £
Bolanee ot 1 April 2009 0 288 8,947 4,370 4,438 1,030 21,073
Provided in year E 0 14 4,550 o 0 957 5,561
{Provisians not required written
back) 0 0 {2,242) 1} o (984) {3,226)
{Provisions utilised in the year) [t} {16} {4,182) (31) (3,774} (339 (B,362)
Unwinding of discaunt [ 6 18 0 o 26 50
Total s at 31 March 2010 0 291 7131 4,319 i 1,690 15,896

Provisions have been mode for 6 types of potential liabitity: Clinical Negligence, Employer’s and Occupier’s Linbility, Early Retirement, Enjury Benefit, Employment Low and
Restructuring (RPA and CSR). The provision for Early Refirement and Injury Benefit setates to the future tiahilities for the Trust bosed on information provided by the HSC
Superannuotion Branch, Fer Clinical Negligence, Employer's and Qceupier's cloims and Employment Law the Trust has estimnted an appropriote level of provision bosed on
prafessional legul ndvice. The estimste for the Restructuring pravisions is based on information ovailable from HR ond the DHSSPS as o1 31/3/10.

Analysis of expected timing of discounted cosh fows

Pensluns relating to  Pensions relating Clinical CSR RPA
farmer directora ty niher stafl Neglipence Resteueturing  Hestructuring Other 2010
£000s £000s E0H)a £iHi(s EMi0s £000s £000
Within 5 years 1] o6 7,131 4,319 664 1,942 t4,152
G -10 years 0 196 ] 0 0 748 44
Thereafter 0 ¢ ) 0 1} o 0
Total as al 31 Merch 2010 0 192 7,131 4,319 G64 2,690 15,096
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 17 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2011 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s
Contracted capital commitments at 31 March not
otherwise included in these financial statements
Property, Plant & Equipment 7,536 2,956 100
Intangible assets 0 0 0
7,536 2,956 100
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 1011

NOTE 18 COMMITMENTS UNDER LEASES

18.1 Operating Leases

Tatal future mininum lease payments under operating leases arc given in the toble below for each of
the following periods.

2011 2010 2009
Obligations under operating lenses comprise £000s £000s £000s
Land & Builtings
Mot later than 1 ycar 861 972 923
Later than 1 year snd not Inter than § years 1,850 2,353 2,517
Later than 5 years 319 £05 705
3,030 3,930 4,145
Other
Not Iater then 1 year 203 163 125
Later thon [ year and not Ister than 5 years [38 100 126
Later then § years 1] 0 0
341 163 251

The Trust leases o range of secommodstion to detiver henltheare throughout the Trust area, The Trust olso leases o
number of items of office equipment - mainly small value photocopiers and multifunctional devices. The Trust also
aperates a car leasing scheme for qualifying staff,

18.2  Finance Lenses

Total future mininum lease payments under finance feases are given in the table below for cach of
the following periads.

2011 2010 2009
Obligations under finance leases comprise £000s £000s £000s
Buildings
Nt later than 1 year 0 1] 0
Later than | year and not later than 5 years 0 o 0
Later than 5 years 0 0 0
0 0 0
Less interest element 4 0 0
Present Value of obligntions 0 0 ]
Other
Not later thon | year 93 9 180
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 281 174 436
Later than 5 years 0 0 04
3 167 710
Less intercst clerment 99 142 198
Present Value of abligations 275 325 512

The Trust Icases a smpdl number of items of clinical, renal and laboratory equipment.

Present Value of Future Obligations

01t 2010 009
Present Value of obligations uncder finance leases for the

following periods comprise: £000s £0003 £000s

Buildings

Not later then one yeor

Luter than one year and not luter thun five years
Later than five yeors

Total Present Value of obligations

oo oo
=0 oD

== =]

Other

Not later than one yeor 56 50 126
Later than enc year and not later than five years 219 215 186
Later than five years 0 0 0

Total Present Vakue of obligations 275 325 512
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011 :

NOTE 13 COMMITMENTS UNDER LESSOR AGREEMENTS

18.3 Operating Leases

Total future mininum lease income under operating leases are given in the table below for each of
the following periods.

2011 2010 2009
Obligations under operating leases issued by the Trust comprise £000s £000s £000s
Land & Buildings
Not later than | year 23 26 26
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 0 21 47
Later than 5 years 0 0 0
23 47 73
Other
Not [ater than 1 year 45 37 29
Later than | year and not later than 5 years 34 a5 19
Later than 5 years 0 0 0
79 72 48

The Trust acts as a lessor in the following arrangements: 1) SRCL Ltd. - whercby the Trust has a leasing
arrangement until 2015 with the Trust receiving 386,000kgs of clinical waste treated annually, without charge, in
return for the leasing of part of the service yard in Antrim Hospital. In 2010/11 this benefit was estimated to be
valued at £299K. 2} Car Leasing Scheme - for qualifying employees whereby the Trust leases vehicles from a
private sector provider then in turn leases these to employees. There are 40 car leasing agreements in place at

present. 3) Floor area in Antrim and Causeway Hospitals - leased to private individuals to allow for the
provision of shops. 4) Grazing Land - leased to private individuals..
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 19 COMMITMENTS UNDER PFI AND OTHER SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENT CONTRACTS

19.1 OfT balance sheet PFI and other service concession nrrangements schemes Restated
2011 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s
Estimated capital value of the PFI schemes 2,877 2,877 2877
2877 2,877 2,877

Contract start date 17/04/2000
Contract end date  16/04/2055

The Trust has a PFI arrangement for the provision of a renal dialysis service st Antrim Hospital, Under the agreement the Trust will make a single
poyment for each dinlysis session commenced with the private sector partner providing the building, equipment and certain services,

Restated
2011 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s
Obligations off balunce sheet (SoFP) Service Concessions for the following
periods comprise
Nat later than one year i) a 0
Later than one year and not later than five years 5,200 0 0
Later than five years 0 5,750 6,900
5,200 5,750 6,900
19.2 On balance sheet (SoFP) PFI Schemes
The Trust has no on balance sheet (SoFP) PFI and other service concession arrangements schemes
19.3 Charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure account and future commitments
Restated
2011 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s
Amounts included within operating expenses in respect of off balance shest (SoFP) PFI
and other service concession arrangement transactions 1,192 1,133 1,146
1,192 1,133 1,146
The payments to which the Trust is committed are as follows:
Restated
2011 2010 2009
£000s £000s £000s
Not later than one year 0 0 0
Later than one year and not Iater than five years 5,200 0 0
Later than five years 0 5,750 6,900
5,200 5,750 6,900
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 20 OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

The Trust did not have any other financial commitments at either 31 March 2011 or 31 March 2010.
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 2t FINANCIAL GUARANTEES, INDEMNITIES AND LETTERS OF COMFORT

Because of the relationships with HSC Commissioners, and the manner in which they are funded,
financial instruments play a more limited role within Trusts in creating risk than would applytoa
non public sector body of a similar size, therefore Trusts are not exposed to the degree of
financial risk faced by business entities, Trusts have limited powers to borrow or invest surplus
funds and financial assets and labilities are generated by day to day operational activities rather
than being held to change the risks facing the Trusts in undertaking activities, Therefore the HSC
is exposed to little credit, liquidity or market risk.

The Trust did not have any financial instruments at either 31 March 2011 or 31 March 2010.
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YSAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 22 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Material contingent liabilities are noted in the table below, where there is a 50% or less probability that a

payment will be required to settle any possible obligations. The amounts or timing of any outflow will
depend on the merits of each case.

2011 2010 2009

£000s £000s £000s
Clinical Negligence 2,844 2,366 1,792
Public Liability 0 0 0
Employers' Liability 0 0 0
Accrued Leave 0 0 0
Injury Benefit 0 0 ]
Other 0 0 0
0 0 0
Total 2,844 2,366 1,792
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

(NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 23 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Mr Sean Donaghy was appointed as Chief Executive of the Northern HSC Trust on 18th September
2010, His brother Mr Colm Donaghy had held this post until 17th September 2010. Prior to his
appointment Mr Sean Donaghy held the post of Deputy Secretary, DHSSPSNI. During the period
14/10 - 17/9/10 it is estimated that the Trust received a revenue resource limit of £265,091K from the
DHSSPSNI. In 2009/10 the related party transactions for these staff amounted to £41,314K.

Mr Colm Donaghy was appointed Chief Executive of the Belfast Trust on 18th September 2010.
During the period 18/9/10 - 31/3/11 it is estimated that the Trust received income amounting to £449K
for the provision of goods and services ta the Belfast Trust. The Trust made payments to the Belfast
Trust, for goods and services received, of approximately £1,675K

NOTE 24 Third party assets

The Trust held £1,646K cash at bank and in hand at 31/3/11 which relates to monies held by the Trust
on behalf of patients. This has been excluded from the cash at bank and in hand amounts reported in
the accounts. A separate audited account of these monies is maintained by the Trust. In 2009/10 the
amount held for third party assets in relation to patients amounted to £1,344K.
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCQUNTS FDE} THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 25 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS

25.1 Revenue Resource Limit

The Trust is given a Revenue Resource Limit which it is not permitied to overspend

The Revenue Resource Limit (RRL) for Northern HSC Trust is caleulnted ns follows:

HSCB
PHA
NIMDTA

DHSSPS ( excludes non cash)
Other Government Departments
Nen cash RRL (from DHSSPS)
Adjustment for Grant in Aid (GiA)

Total Revenue Resource Limil to Statement Comprehensive Net Expenditure

25.2 Capital Resource Limit

The Trust is given a Capilal Resource Limit (CRL) which it is not permitied to overspend.

Gross Capital Expendilure
Less IFRIC 12/PF] and other service concession armngements spead
{Receipts from sales of fixed assets)

Net capital expenditure
Capital Resource Limit

Overspend/(Underspend) agninst CRL

74

Restated
2011 2010
Total Total
£000s £000s
527,894 527,688
4942 0
5,237 6,516
0 1,938
3] 1,559
30,974 29,903
0 0
569,165 567,604
2011 2010
Total Total
£600s £(:00s
20,168 10,634
1} 0
0 0
20,168 10,634
20,168 10,636
0 (2)




NORTHERN HSC TRUST
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2611

NOTE 25.3 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS

The Trust is required to ensure that it breaks even on an annual basis by
containing its net expenditure to within 0.25 % of RRL limiis

Restated
2010/11 2009/10
£000s £000s

Net Expenditure (569,108) (567,558)
RRL 569,165 567,604
Surplus / (Deficit)
against RRL 57 46
Break Even cumulative
position(opening) {723) (769}
Other Adjustments 0 0
Break Even Cumulative
position (closing) (666) {723)
Materiality Test: Restated

2010/11 2009/10

% %

Break Even in year
position as % of RRL 0.01% 0.00%
Break Even cumulative
position as % of RRL -0.12% -0.13%
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 26 LOSSES & SPECIAL PAYMENTS

NO. OF VALUE
TYPE OF LOSS CASES £
1 Cash Losses - Theft, fraud etc 10 165
2 Cash Losses - Overpayments of salaries, wages and allowances 11 4,857
Cash Losses - Other causes (including unvouched and incompletely
3 vouched payments) 5 86
4 Nugatory and fruitless payments
i.  Abandoned capital schemes 0 0
ii. Late Payment of Commercial Debt 2 27
ili. Other 0 0
5 Bad debts and claims abandoned 160 45,458
6 Stores and Inventory Losses - Theft, fraud, arson (whether proved or
i. Bedding and linen 0 0
ii. Other equipment and property a5 12,211
7 Stores and Inventory Losses - Incidents of the service (result of fire,
flood, etc) 0 0
8 Stores and Inventory Losses - Deterioration in store 47 34,251
9 Stores and Inventory Losses - Stocktaking discrepancies 0 0
10 Stores and Inventory Losses - Other causes
i. Beddingand linen 0 0
ii. Other equipment and property 4 770
Il Compensation payments {legal obligation)
i. Clinical Negligence 79 1,748,904
if. Public Liability 10 135,313
ili. Employers Liability 47 397,979
12 Ex-gratia payments - Compensation payments (including payments to
patients and staff} 27 16,563
13 Ex-gratia payments - Other payments 0 0
14 Extra statutory payments 0 0
15 a. Losses sustained as a result of damage to buildings and fixtures
arising from bomb explosions or civil commotion, 0 0
b. Damage to vehicleg 12 29,189
TOTAL 449 2,425,773

There were no instances of individual cases which
exceeded £250K.

26.1 Special Payments

There were no special payments or gifis made during the year,
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NORTHERN HSC TRUST

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

NOTE 27 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There are no post balance sheet events having a material effect on the accounts.

NOTE 28 DATE AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE

The Accounting Officer authorised these financial statements for issue on 28th June 2011.
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REPORT OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL TO THE ASSEMBLY
Weaknesses in contract expenditure controls

1. The Northern Health and Social Care Trust (the Northern Trust) was established under the
Northern Health and Social Services Trust (Establishment) Order (Northern Ireland) 2006 for
the purposes specified in Article 10{1) of the Health and Parsonal Social Services (Northern
Ireland} Order 1991, It is one of 17 arm’s length bodies sponsored by the Department of
Health, Sacial Services and Public Safety (the Department). In 2010-11 it spent £0.6 billion.

2. Under the Health and Personal Social Services (Northern Ireland} Order 1972 as amended, |
am required to examine and certify the Trust’s financial statements. | conduct my audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) to give reascnable
assurance that they are free from material misstatement. | am also required to satisfy
myself that in all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the
purposes intended by the Assembly and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

3. In this report | comment on control weaknesses identified in the area of contracts by
Internal Audit which my staff identified during the audit of the Trust in 2010-11. These
weaknesses do not impact on my audit opinion due to their immateriality within the Trust's
financial statements. However, due to the recurrence of these issues across the health
sector | have decided to report.

4. During the audits of the five regtonal HSC trusts-my staff reviewed reparts prepared by
Internal Audit which identified a number of control weaknesses in relation to contracts in
the areas of radiology and laboratory maintenance, social care procurement and use of
agency and locum staff.

5. This resulted in a limitation on the assurance provided to the Accounting Officer by Internal
Audit. The vast majority of Trust procurement is completed through the Business Services
Organisation (BSO) which is a Centre of Procurement Excellence. Findings in this report do
not relate to this element of procurement. In the Northern Trust the following issues were
identified:

» Rolling over of contracts, which were not always authorised, instead of
undergoing a competitive tendering process;

¢ \Weaknesses in monitoring of contracts in terms of checking prices to the agreed
contract and ensuring service delivery was in line with the contract;

¢ Non-compliance with policies and procedures; and

s Inadequate information systems to suppart contracts and deficiencies in
contract documentation.

6. lrecognise that the HSC has undergone significant organisational change and consequently
a number of these issues have arisen from legacy arrangements that operated in the trusts
merged to form the Northern Trust. However, | am concerned that four years after the
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Northern Trust came into existence management controls had not addressed the points
noted by Internal Audit. The Trust has accepted Internal Audit recommendations to
improve contract management controls and is addressing them, With the potential
regularity and litigation risks associated with poor contract management, added to the
potential value for money rewards arising from improvement, | encourage all the trusts to
address these weaknesses identified as a priority. | intend to keep this area under review
and will consider the impact of any follow —up wark completed by Internal Audit when
examining the Trust’s financial statements next year.

My staff are currently working on a study covering the Use of Locums in Northern Ireland
Hospitals. Trusts have contracts in place with a number of external agencies, through the
Business Services Organisation (BSO), for the supply of [ocum doctors. Against the
background of these contracts, this report will examine the extent to which the
appointment and employment of locum doctors has adhered to approved procedures.

| welcome the Northern Trust’s disclosure of these control weaknesses, and action being
taken to address them, within its Statement on Internal Control.

ij@mﬂg},

K Donnelly

Comptroller and Auditor General
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast BT7 1EU

28 June 2011
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Northern HSC Trust

ACCOUNT OF MONIES HELD ON BEHALF OF PATIENTS / RESIDENTS

YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

STATEMENT OF TRUST'S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RELATION TO PATIENTS'/ RESIDENTS' MONIES

The Trust is required by the Health and Personal Social Services (Northern Ireland)
Order 1991 to prepare and submit accounts in such form as the Depariment may direct.
The Trust is also required to maintain proper and distinct accounting records and is
responsible for safeguarding the monies held on behalf of patients / residents and for

taking reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.



Northern HSC Trust

Year Ended 31 March 2011

ACCOUNT OF MONIES HELD ON BEHALF OF PATIENTS / RESIDENTS

Previous
Year RECEIPTS
£ £ £
Balance at 1 April 2010
1,000,000 1. Investments (at cost) 0
225,474 2. Cash at Bank 1,339,893
3,955 3. CashinHand 4,145 1,344,038
903,720 Amounts Received in the Year 1,167,117
13,902 Interest Received 14,944
2,147,051 TOTAL 2,526,099
PAYMENTS
£803,013 Amounts Paid to or on behalf of Patients/Residents 880,531
Balance at 31 March 2011
£0 1. Investments (at cost) 1,400,000
£1,339,893 2. Cash at Bank 241,323
£4,145 3. Cashin Hand 4,245 1,645,568
£2,147,051 TOTAL 2,526,099
Schedule of Investments held at 31 March, 2011
Nominal Vaiue Cost Price
£ £
£0 Investment 1,400,000 1,400,000

I certify that the above account has been compiled from and is in accordance with the
financial records maintained by the Trust.

K Aonfece

Director of Finance

Date

/Z,// é’,./“k’ 1

| certify that the above acgount has been submitted to and duly approved by the Board.

Vo

Chief Executive

UZ}B Joe

If

Date




NORTHERN HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE TRUST

THE CERTIFICATE AND REPORT OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL TO
THE NORTHERN IRETAND ASSFMBLY

I certify that I have audited the account of Northern Health and Social Care Trust for the year
ended 31 March 2011 under the Health and Personal Social Service (Northern Ireland) Order
1972, as amended.

Respective responsibilities of the Trust and anditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trust responsibilities in relation to Patients/Residents
Monies, the Trust is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with
the Health and Personal Social Service (Northern Ireland) Order 1972 and Department of Health,
Social Services and Public Safety’s directions made thereunder. My responsibility is to audit the
financial statements in accordance with the Health and Personal Social Service (Northern Ireland)
Order 1972. 1 conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland). Those standards require me and my staff to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Anditors,

Scope of the andit of the account

An audit involves obtaining evidence abeut the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.

In addition, I am required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Opinion on Regularity

In my opinion, in all material respects the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Opinion on account
In my opinion:

¢ the account properly presents the receipts and payments of the monies held on behalf of the
patients /residents of Neorthern Health and Social Care Trust for the year then ended and
balances held at that date; and

» the account has been properly prepared in accordance with the Health and Personal Socizl
Service (Northern Ireland) Order 1972 and Department of Health, Social Services & Public
Safety directions issued thereunder.

Mntters on which I report by exception

1 have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which I report to you if, in my
opinion:



* adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
s the account is not in agreement with the accounting records; or
e Thave not received all of the information and explanations I require for my audit; or

o the Statement on Internal Control does not reflect compliance with the Department of
Finance and Personnel’s guidance.

Report

1 have no observations to make on this account.

Kiw J @m‘o_car

KT Donnelly

Comptroller and Avditor General
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street

Northern

BT7 1IEU

28 Jume 2011
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